
.· !llJ MISSOURI 
DEPARTMENT OF 
NATURAL RESOURCES 

Soil and Water Conservation Program 

AGENDA 
Missouri Soil and Water Districts Commission 

MU Fisher Delta Research Center 
147 State Highway T 

Portageville MO 
June 17, 2015 

8:00 a.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
C. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
D. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S 

COMMENTS 
1. N312 Animal Waste Systems, Equalize Maximums -Action Item 
2. N340 Cover Crop, Finalize for Regular Cost-Share - Action Item 
3. Handbook Updates 
4. FY15 Cost-Share Fund Status/FY16 Allocations 
5. Tabled: Plan for the Future Program Delivery and Operations Subcommittee- Action 

Item 
6. 2015 Area Meetings Update 
7. Envirothon Update 
8. Staff Updates 
9. History of Little River Drainage District - Information Only 

E. REQUEST 
(If an additional supervisor request is received in advance of this meeting, it may be presented 
to the commission at that meeting.) 
1. Supervisor Requests 

a. Sullivan SWCD 
b. Carter SWCD 
c. Oregon SWCD 

2. Tabled: Follow-up on Increase Cost-Share Well Drilling Component in Southeast 
Missouri 

3. Cape Girardeau SWCD - Reconstruction for N4 l 0 Drop Pipe and DSL-11 Permanent 
Vegetative Cover Critical Area 

4. Ste. Genevieve SWCD - DSL-01 Permanent Vegetative Cover Establishment Cost
Share Maintenance Violation 

F. NEW BUSINESS 
G. REPORTS 

1. University of Missouri 
2. Department of Conservation 
3. Department of Agriculture 
4. Natural Resources Conservation Service 
5. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 



MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
June 17, 2015 
Page 2 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
I. SUGGESTED DATE(S) OF NEXT MEETINGS 

August 19, 2015, Sedalia, Missouri 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

OPTIONAL TOUR (Upon Adjournment and Lunch) 
Tour of Fisher Delta Research Center 

Those wishing to address the commission on any of the above issues need to contact a program staff 
member, Theresa Mueller or sign up on the comment card at the commission meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, special accommodation needs, or would like a copy 
of any material provided at the commissiQJl.J.Ue_e_ting,_please cantaclihe1:esa-MueLle1~at-5-7-3=-52M66&.~---

The Soil and Water Districts Commission may go into closed session at this meeting if such action is 
approved by a majority vote of the commission members who constitute a quorum to discuss legal, 
confidential, or privileged matters under§ 610.021(1), RSMo 2000; personnel actions under · 
§610.021(3); personnel records or applications under §610.021(13), records under§ 610.021(14), or 
audit issues under§ 610.021(17), which are otherwise protected from disclosure by law. 



G~- Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

MINUTES 
MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 

Bradford Farm, University of Missouri 
Columbia, Missouri 

April 8, 2015 
.·. ·.·.· .· . 

. ·.·.·.·.·.-.·.·.· 

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Thomci,_~:i i3t·~~-l:y, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance 
and Gary Vandiver ./\\/ --:::::{::::-. 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS: RICHAruj jl~YCE :~litoF 
··:;:;:;:;:;.;. ' ··:;:;:;:;:;.: 

AGRICULTURE: Judy Grundler; BOB ZIE,:QMER, P._EPT. OF{}\ 
CONSERVATION: Lisa Potter SARA PARKER.PAULEY DJfi-tf:;:OF 

~- :-:::- . ·-:;:;.;:;.;:: .. . -:::-:-:::-:::-· ' ··.;:::::::::· . 

NATURAL RESOURCES: Jqf~~g~ln; D EAN\WffOMAS PAYNE/ ==· 
UNIVERSITY OF MISSOUitff i5£0.fo::Baker ·-:\f:\ .. 

ADVISORY MEMBfiJi&IHREs;~, ::~~~Nb;=~¥~R CONSERVATION .. ;:::::::::::::::-· ·-:.:::::::::::.. ·:::::::::, .. ::::::::::::::-: ·.:,:-:;:;:;:-:;:; .. 

PROGRAM (SW:;Qf): Coli~~fotvfereditli;(N)\J?URADl{ESOURCES 
CONSERV ATION{$.$;RVIGE (NRCS}f}{ R. Flores; MISSOURI 
ASSOCIATION 01t§:QIL:AND<WATER}CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

(MA~:?$Jj); :k~i¥)c~ ~~:JI~~,~~ ~~TO~~~~ (iENERAL' S 0 FFI CE: Tim Duggan 

STAF;(JtJJil)fBERS·;k~S.JJ,;fify:t}.p Beydler, Patty Chapman, Alan Freeman, Theresa 
Mueller, JennLf~~~X:~Hett, Darl~~$~\ychabel1/Jim Plassmeyer, Bill Wilson 

· - : -:-:-~-:.;.. -:-:-:-:.; .. 

OTHERS PRE;,WT::::.BO:l~E: Ethan Miller· HOWARD: Bev Dometrorcir 
·-:.:-:.:-:-:-:-:·:·:-:·:-:-· ' ' 

JEFFERSON: GeorgE?f:ngelbach; LIVINGSTON: David Morris; MISSOURI 
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: Chris Klenklen; MISSOURI FARM 
BRUEAU: Kelly Smith; MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (MSWCDEA): Sandy Stratman; · 
UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI: Randy Miles; UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI 
EXTENSION: Todd Lorenz, Will McClain 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 20 I 5 
Page 2 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Gary Vandiver called the meeting to order at the University of Missouri 
Bradford Farm in Columbia, Missouri, at 9:02 a.m.- Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff 
Lance and Gary Vandiver were present, which made a quorum. 

B. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

c. 

Thomas Bradley made a motion to approve the minutes of the February I I, 20I5, 
Commission Meeting. Jeff Lance seconded the motion. When asked by the Chair, 
Thomas Bradley, I-1. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary::\%hdiver voted in favor of the 
motion and the motion carried unanimously. _.;:;::~:::J}/ 

.. ::'. :~ ~ ~~~ ~~~~l i~~~ :~\~~ ~~~~:; :: .. 

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RES:ci~R~i:gi\:-. 
Joe Engeln thanked Dave Baker for ho~tfHlbi1e meeting at B~~~J.!~qi:~ Farm and loo~-- __ 
forwardTo touring tfie-Soil Health Asses~fo~nt Center. Mr. Engeln%?.i_d the Department of 
Natural Resources (department) is workl~:{ifl9):inaliz~::¢9ntracts bet·w~~ll. the Soil and 
Water Conservation Program .. _@WCP) and .Hk}.J:~w#fR~sources Dari{a:g'.¢.~ group to do 
projects in both the southeast@'.~l::$QUthwest part{:Q:fffie state. This is in jfaitnership with 
Missouri Department of Con~~~W.~Hqh:(fyIDC) an<l?f.:h~ .. Nature Conservancy. These 
projects will assist farmers witI{ ph1cHte$j_JJJhe ripad%b:;9rridor to stabilize areas 
impacted by mining __ ;:;~tivities in th~::past--~ha)~~~p the m~~:}1_nd other metal tailings out of 

the stream . . •• ;;Ii.ll ; ;;·,;ik· . ·····•.•I ··r ;tmr; >•"••>•· 
Outreach wilFb;~gi_n in the -Q.~?ct few morjJh§j i1 fourteen ··different basins of the Our 
Missouri Wated:tOM.W) vJ.~tersheds . EX'l~ting data has been gathered so now the 
partq~r~ :e:w9. _ yvater~h~'.C.l::f.P:~r~hfofoJ,:s _ will ebg~ge citizens in conversations to learn their 
cq£fo~rhs{A}~y::prindp)~fof the ·otv:(W:::i$. to\ 6ove decision-making into the watersheds. 

·:::.1 .. :'.'.~ngeln a.11:1~~:JK?~.9-_ tl1~~::Xh~rea c-~:ll:i:;~!~::previously Director at the department's ' 

Kafis-~$ __ City Region~(Qf.fice, M·s: b~en selected as the new Director of the Water 
Resol'.fo¢~:f:::f._enter. Staf(Wi}I so01{b'e working on the State Water Plan. 

Mr. Engel·~~:::~4q~d that t1Mi_clepartment went through a program review a few years ago. 
From this revl~W.;)1 n~w[fohiative was formed called "Enhancing Effectiveness and 
Efficiency (E3),;~:Wifi:sWi\~ a process-oriented way to look at how to improve business and 
how to serve custonid:s. The department is joining a large list of agencies around the 
country that are bringing these LEAN events into government. Mr. Engeln is one of the 
staff serving on the committee. The focus will be on finding where time and efforts are 
wasted, reducing costs and inefficiencies, and how to give customers what they want; 
focus on what is really important. This is a long-term effort. The programs will be able to 
provide suggestions over the next 24 months. Mr. Engeln felt this is a perpetual process 
because of constant work toward improvements. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 3 

D. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S 
COMMENTS 
Colleen Meredith mentioned the department is working on the "Our Missouri Waters 
Targeted Conservation" Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP) project. 
There are seven watersheds in the project for the first year. SWCP and Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) will be working on Environmental Quality Incentive 
Program (EQIP) sign-ups. This is a five-year project and other watersheds will be also be 
involved. Staff are working closely with the districts within these watersheds. 

Ms. Meredith announced there is a regional Envirotlw#.\B!¢ing held today at the Runge 
Conservation Nature Center in Jefferson City. ../~()>· 

Ms. Meredith brought to the Soil and Waterp!§i~-i:h~~::2:gih~n!ssion's (Commission) 
attention to their copies of the March/Ap1)h $.:¢'.H and Watet:R¢.~.ources Newsletter, as well 
as' the Living Soils activity book, whicb:$~~::b'een recently reV'hhtp.ed. The activity books 
are available to the districts for use witif1¥:~ir education progra1ri{)::-::: .. 

1. FY15 Cost-Share Fu_n.d Status ::~jJ~)!$:*-P.r~.£.W:~Ktal Cost-;~:~;~~~A~Iocations 
Alan Freeman prese11W4.Jh~ Fiscal Y eif g:QJr:CFY 15) Cost-Sharif Fund Status and 
Supplemental Cost-Si%J::i.'A[l)p.~(,ltions. He:=~~~'<;iJhat as of April 7, 2015, 
approximately $37 mill'i~h;Ji.al$.~~~~)1llocate'Ci\@4 of that amount, approximately 
$26.1 million was obligat~:~hmd .$l~t:4:m:i,illion p~fr:l:J.o landowners. For the FY15 
Agricult.\<!t~F'.B.ns.:11point Sot{~;8¢::;>peciaT:A~~~~(f,,.(lnd f{'¢.~tment (AgNPS SALT) cost
share~A1¥fci:idhrat~h .. $534,5L1ih~~:J~WifaiihWt~4; $327,604 has been obligated 
with Sh:#.4, 13 8 bdfrg/paid to lanqg\yifors. ·-:::;::::::=-

·· ::::~~~~~f~::::.. /~~~I~~ ·:\?I~L .. 
... -: J~m .. suppl~M¥ht~l,.~HB¢&tj.QJ1.S, Mr. .. Ffieman said the threshold to qualify is 90 

.. :t)/}#ei¢.~ht:9blig~h~~LB:fti~e··rnrnt:~U9.~ati~#=:in each resource concern. The 
:Af?t=· · suppiem~ht~l ali'O'ifatiqn for cju~tlfyip.g\esource concerns is $20,000. The 
'<)\,:. supplem~ii#L~llodti~'h~. were re~i~~ed on a weekly basis, starting October 9, 

·=::::{\.:2014. As o{Afo:i.J. 201 .Sfih~re is $7.7 million in FY15 supplemental allocations 
·-: ·\@~.1ppleted. Orit:#~~trict rifof the maximum $500,000 total supplemental allocation, 

wl):fo_l~ was approy¢~ by the Commission at the December 2014 meeting. The 
cui%h:tstatewidc{ a:1iocation is $37 million, which does not include the $500,000 
alloc~&~)9 .20A1~&icts through disaster declaration, FEMA-4200-DR. A total of 
88 distrid(r~~~ived supplemental allocations in FYI 5. 

·.· .: :.·.• .. 

2. Disaster Declaration FEMA-4200-DR Update 
Alan Freeman presented the Disaster Declaration FEMA-4200-DR Update. 
Mr. Freeman explained that currently there were 36 reconstruction contracts for a 
cost-share estimate of $141,800. The practices that are being reconstructed 
include terraces, diversion, seedings, pond, and sod waterway. Colleen Meredith 
mentioned the payments were being tracked separately. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 4 

3. Plan for the Future Update 
Colleen Meredith said the Plan for the Future's Info/Ed Committee and the 
Program Delivery and Operations Committee have recently held meetings. At the 
last Commission meeting, the Program Delivery and Operations Committee 
presented a request to combine the Info/Ed and Administrative Grants due to 
overlap of eligible expenses, and reduce the total grant by $500. Combining 
grants will allow more flexibility and the reduction in the combined grants will 
help offset the increased from five to seven percent in district employee 
retirement benefits. The Commission had tabled ~he request until the committees 
could meet again. The committees decided to d~y~Jop a small subgroup with 
representative members of each subcommitt~M\Recommendations formed from 
this workgroup will be presented at the ne,#\¢6\rnnission meeting . 

. ·.··.·.·.·.·.· ·.:-:-:-:-·· 

4. Update on Component Entry intw$.}.~t'e Aver~~~:~Q9st List 
Colleen Meredith said the Com1n~*~i8ff tabled discus:~IQi\: .on the well drilling 
component-at the December m@#fik-As staff looked idt~:Jh~ issue, they found-·~ 
that all districts were not enterin:g{cfo~ts into the_._state averagf9_9st list. Only a 
small number of districts have set tIMj§J_q_te cg~f:::f'or the well CiHffip,g component. 
Staff are working witlfNR.CS and Fai:h{[$.:e.~Nk{Agency (FSA).toj)lace an Excel 
spreadsheet onto the··s:Mf~P.4.::Water Co~:~tfy'.~tion Districts (SWCDs) Intranet 
web site which can be "@:ed:·:~:~:~:llh:alternativttb:~the NRCS web site. These costs 
are needed so the lando~~~:r c~gi~f:#w state -~J.~:i'.~ge cost as close as possible to 
the actua_Ls9.~t::,J"J1is should¥~: avaiia~l¥:~9911 so <lr~fo9ts can get their information 

enter10::0~~::0i1d~i%~t);;;:: . · -:::;@i:t;/l~:: ·::·[J> ::::=:::::@nmw:r: ··:::::·· 

In respciti~~Jo a que·$Jion, Ms. M~i~dith said the information should be available 
at the encf b(May '. :Mf\y~µdiver dq\1~sted this be brought back to the 

:::/=Jl%himi~sior1. ~fal{ifj:l:1hth%faipg. Allctditional information, Ms. Meredith said a 
.:d)J'.~;:::::•·:·~~~-~~ib\fk:s~pt t~\tiK:S.WCD;,:g\j:~hr::Y.e~(to remind them to enter this information. 
{f\( She felt " tiW:d_istricf$S~xd could "j)i8Vide encouragement to get the information 

··::::::jf\. entered sinc"li(woulcF~ff~9t their district, rather than the Commission making it 
"\(}tpandatory. Ti{t~_atabastfb~vailable for entries all year. 

··:::::::··.::·. :·:::::::· ··: ·~· · 
·.;.:.:.;.·.:. 

s~Ad.:Y· Stratman l:~~ponded to a question and felt the Commission should not make 
cost~'(fai~ entry rrt.Af}<latory due to NRCS computer access issues and contracts 
coming.lnJqr,tlfoi nd of the year payments making a hardship on staff. She felt it 
may be moi:·e>iffective if the boards could strongly encourage districts to get the 
information entered as soon as possible. A suggestion was made by the 
Commission for Ms. Stratman and Kenny Lovelace to send out a memo to their 
members encouraging them to complete their data entries. 

5. University of Missouri - Columbia, College of Agriculture, Food and Nati.tral 
Resources 
Dave Baker, Assistant Dean, welcomed the group on behalf of Dean Payne to the 
Bradford Research and Extension Center. The Center is 591 acres and the 
research focuses on crops, soils and related disciplines. This is one of 17 research 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 5 

sites throughout in the state. The diversity of the research conducted at these sites 
is comprehensive and locally driven. Missouri ranks internationally 14111 and 
nationally in Plant and Animal Science Research. On behalf of the University 
Administration, Extension and Research faculty, Mr. Baker thanked the group for 
being strong supporters. 

Assistant Dean Baker said they have a team in the 12 central states looking at 
cover crops. A survey was sent out to inventory these states. One question was 
"Why did you choose to plant cover crops?" The .top three responses were soil 
health, nutrient management and soil erosion cq:fi.ti:ol. He thought these reasons 
were why this partnership was very importa.qt \ t{{introduced Dr. Randy Miles 
and said he has also been instrumental in,.:rfrqyfog the Soil Health Assessment 

· Center forward. ..·. <:~}:?' .. :::::<@:::::: .. 

a. Introduction to Missou..rfi~'.~I?Hcalth As;!:~:~~~.v.t Center 
Dr. Randy Miles also tl\~#:fi'ed the partners for thei\j)µpport to get the Soil 
Health Assessment Cent~f{SJIAC) goi11g. He said-.b:~hma Brandt and Russ 
Dresbach are colleagues wifoJt~. alsqj~{Y.plved. They:·~i!¢J9oking to see 
how to make .. th~)~pil healthy :f6f%t~::hl$1y vital functions\:fb.e goals are to 
be quantitati.J~(@tL~p.~cific, c01~m~tµ~1, prescriptive and evaluative. The 
clientele will in=~Jfad"e\¢$¢~xchers, lalii{Jti.:;inagers and consultants. 

D.r::::MU~§. talked -~~~4.tt::::~~:l~{j~~hml.i~=~:':~:Wii~tthey will evaluate and 

. .:=::~#hhHrifawl:ien and Where _tl.i¢y\tfffB¢::~~mpilng and the depth of the soil 
·([:@:h1ple. s<M%1hing neZ~twnfht°bulk ·~i~As°ity sampling to get more 

""JMY.:~ical propfaties. He c&PJ~ined they will be developing a "Soil Health 
Pacl('.~g~" fq(~Hm:ay of aiia)yses. A committee will help with this along 

., •• ;tr•·· it 0i:~ 16~~1i:M•·p;;fiil~I% >·•••• ; 
"\){ Di\ M.Pes expJ~ined they waht to provide a variety of results in various 

.. \:{\ .. way·s::~h_c;I. he sifofy:~d some examples. Comparative reports would also be 
·::::;:;:;=::;.. provide4\ T.hey i-i"e~9.~d to further develop the potentially mineralizable 

··:::\\::.. nitrogen\vh.ich he f~h would be a water quality tool in the long term, as 
·-::::(\: .. well as tl~'.¢j~hospholipid fatty acid analysis for biological assessment. 

··:::::;::::::- . ........ .. 

lf¥:~.ai.~(Hi~J~ are working to develop a consensus on what would be some 
oth~iWM?:.gested analyses or services that the lab could provide over time. 
The Soil Health Consorti uni (an advisory group of various entities from 
around the state) is starting with a defined core and working from there. 
Input from partners will be req.uested at a later date. 

Within the next year or so, Dr. Miles said they will complete the move to 
South Farm and get the analyses protocol firmly established. Because of 
sampling and other new things they are doing, they want to start a train
the-trainer program relative to sampling protocol followed by expression 
and interpretation of the results. Dr. Miles added that over the next year 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 6 

they want to be highly visible and establish relevance. Staff will attend 
field days, workshops, state meeting, natural resources meetings, etc. They 
want to be adaptable, attempt to suit the customers' needs and provide 
additional information as needed. They always welcome input. 

Dr. Miles will lead the tour of the Soil Health Assessment Center. 

Assistant Dean Baker added that this facility is one of three similar 
facilities in the United States. Dr. Miles explained that the Soil 
Characterization Lab has worked close1yJ f.lthe past with a national soil 
survey lab in Lincoln, Nebraska. They/pikil' to continue that working 
relationship. He considers this a 1;~i.FfoAi/national initiative and looks 
forward to working with them. ·/:):::::-- "\)\ .. 

. . . ~.· -· ·-::: :::::>-_.;:::· .. ·.·· 

b. Cover Crops - Where a_t~~f#~+ ·:::::?{ ::::::. 
Assis taf1t Dearf Bakef Wifi':Q'cfocea Todd-Lorenz, \ V.hP::Jrns been instrumental 
in providing leadership. ··::::::J\: . ··<:(:\. 

Todd Lorenz.pt¢.?.~nted inf~1.;;~1ih:9~t~$1l:g~:~tainable s:~:{)f~¢:~lth for 
Improved FoddJ3:e'.i;hJrities. The ch~iifa1ge is how to feed approximately 
nine billion peciW:~VY.:=fh~:year 2050\Q~h~r issues are absentee ownership, 
increased farm siz~~" cle~h::#Usige, smCibiJt~-~edbeds, huge equipment, 
e~-~~D.$iYy._ monoculfri~;~' coniiW~~'¢.i.?.l..Jertifrt~~'.~> - chemical application and 

·:::\~:i:~1~8i+:rni:~t~is{)~h flow-:}£9~(1 :~:;?~I:~i·;rl:::::::<:Jt::@j;> "::;::::·· 

' Tij)~prking ti;fa?;et the soitJNalth and cover crop information out to the 
faamh:s, a iri{i'.lfo:li~ciplinai:yj¢~m from various agencies will work with 

: -:<::J\{L?>:::: :_ farn~~il:~~fmtHMlta.te .. Th~yfo_re approaching it from a science based 
. :d:ft:::=:··" "'"·• ::::<;\foµndad'Oi{~pd incil:idhfaJCJ.prteFs as stakeholders at the local level, in the 
\\\( ' h6p~$:-9f bitti'gjpg about itfotural change in thinking about the concept of 
":<:{i\: . soi(i%:~lth an'Cf~qy~r crops. 

· · ··.-.'. ·-:.;-:-:·:-. ·.· ·.·.··· 
. . . . . -.·::\}\ 

"\{\.. He felt ~h~:!;s,oil Heilth Consortium is a step in the right direction. The 
\ (:\,:proposed i@Jution is environmental and ecological awareness, soil health 

"\(b:a.sed pr_ci:d_{fotion, long term goals in production capacity, best 
"h#ha.g¢fo¢'!~t practices, improved plant and animal health and cultural shift 
fo1>g)fohational benefits. 

Mr. Lorenz mentioned a cover crop on-farm research project in northwest 
Missouri coordinated by Rich 1-Ioorman and Charles Ellis that has been 
on-going since 2009. They are also working on a Cover Crop Integration 
System, which will be part of the train-the-trainer program. This is still in 
the preliminary development stages. Mr. Lorenz had pictures of another 
on-going project on the Graves-Chapple Research Center in northwest 
Missouri . He is working on the impact of cover crops to aid in the 
recovery of flooded soils. Mr. Lorenz thought maybe if cover crops had 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 7 

been in place there would have been less sediment loss and, different 
crops work better in different parts of the state. 

In using a cover crop survey, the results have shown a 30 percent increase 
in cover crops each year. More and more farmers are adopting this 
management practice back into their system. The national speakers on 
cover crop agree on the least amount of soil disturbance, armor the soil 
surface, diversity in species and leaving the root in the ground as long as 
possible. 

Mr. Lorenz felt the Cover Crop/Soi_IJ{~~'.f {i{ rrogram integration had a 
great past and is looking forward J9Ahfafuture, which is moving along 
swiftly. The scientific communitfi~i~:i:ei{~l1~t soil health will improve the 
water cycle, integrated pes(.IJfopagement, ·btMsJ.ing soil organic matter in 
time, nutrient cycling, enh~ii~l"pollinators, ad]W$t carbon and nitrogen 
rations, wildlife winter::f.~foWand shelter, and live~fo.~.l< integration. They 
are trying to improve th~(phY.!?ical soil structure an·a:;:~~qciiversity of plants 

and animals. :::::::::::=:::::·:·. ·-:<{:j)[j~}\(j[ ·;:~·l~l)· ··:::;\1t :[~]t 
Mr. Lorenz niefif:i:o#~.4 .. they are fryipgJ o partner with the Missouri Prairie 
Foundation, wl1fsh}i(~:~p~~~y~te, nonpi;~f~t~ 501 ( c )(3) prairie conservation 
organization, gov~fq~d hfi\yqJ:unteer ho'.a\ci of directors. They are in 
c9.U5t.t?.sm1Jicin with 1t~gionai'l%@#~.ipn Spe8taUst and NRCS. This is the 

{ 1;::::;:,i;: ::: ~:~~iii!~:~~=:~!~,:::: has been reduced over 
ti1rtK)D1e ~9jW~mti_onal tiliag~: .. and residue removal are the main 

.-:::<:/(fi~\\\>:sontdBGt.<:fr'.~iiHsfdWiuipd rdf.~t.i9n diversity should help turn this around. 
-::/=tit;::-:-··· · ·.·. ·.: ::\{B;eJ1ope:CC~h~ .. animaC8o±frP..o.n~nt could be reintroduced into the system. 

?/Ht_.. ~:1:::;t1i{fowr~=,?AfKJ~9renz · ·~~~i~· each farmer has their own management 

·::;:;(\:-. systenlth~Y are d~ii.}g.. The university and partners are trying to introduce .. <<tt. them to sbfoe of thct i·esearch based information and provide them with the 

··: :<:[~l<it:~~ource;:!1~:: .determine the best practice. 

A~sj~t~h(bean Baker added he was very fortunate to have this team 
wo&fol{with him on this project. 

Discussions followed on flood damaged soils, the economic benefit of 
engaging in conservation practices and including wildlife cover crops. 

E. TOUR 11 :00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 
Tour of the Missouri Soil Health Assessment Center- South Farm and Bradford 
Research Center 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 8 

Note: The agenda was changed to hear informational reports from the partners then 
begin requests at 1 :00 p.m. 

F. REPORTS 
1. University of Missouri 

Dave Baker thanked everyone for coming to Bradford Farm . 
. ·. •.·. 

2. Department of Conservation .. /(}f:· 
Lisa Potter mentioned they found two mo_r¢)~:~~:~~ of chronic wasting disease 
(CWD) in deer. This season they took 3.;:$.;Q;g::~~hjpJ~s from harvested deer. Eleven 
cases were found in free ranging dee.~'::::/\:'. faick ha1'vi.~t~d in Cole County tested 
positive. This was the first case o..f:¢Wb found outs}d,¢::t~e 6-county CWD 
containment zone. The_Missow.:{ :l%!)artmenLof Consetv~tjQn-(MDC) is-currently 
analyzing how they plan to adcii~$iJ~WD outside of the 2Hliti:1.j;nment area and will 
present the strategy to the public. ·M$}Potter ~-~Ht.the Comrni:s$fon would be 
updated as well. They)>Jill have oth~l:~:~mpJ~~)C:/~nalyze, hop~fufiy no other 

cases will be found. · :<j·_!\<ll;)·%;;:::r::\~::·:·. · :::::;\:\:~:.:·1;~·;;;\ . . ·-:· 

Journagan Ranch (over 3mQo a:d:~~);::qonated . frfM~ssouri State University (MSU), 
is a farm ti.J~tmovides res'e=~h:.h or¥offoµWes fo.?sfuq~nts and demonstration for 
practice.~:Jl#Fh~h:\:>.e condud@ ... on W:9f~{i{gJcinns. 'Kits·~ Potter said recently MDC 
enter¢4):H°t6 an agf¢~p1ent withJyrn:J0.tt61~ pr~dtitjJp,g assistance in managing the 
naturaFG'bmmunity'a.±~as alongJQ.GJ'iiagan Rand{ Clint Dalbom will assist in the 
natural c'8h1h.1unity _ ii\~q~gement HfbJ1e farm. 

··.:<:~~~::::. ... · :::~:)~:~:)/~{}:::: ·:-. · ·.::~ : ~:~:\ . 
.. :<tJifM~<rt~~t~i: inf~Nih.~d. .ti1~ ·~rnJK~h.~t..1~{6i~~ information will soon be coming out 

(((?:·· about i11hh~xc;h buft~dJies. In ilit1~(Z014, the White House sent a memo to the 
.. \(}::.. United St~{e~<pepa1:th%~1~ of Agric~lture and the Department of Interior to start 

"\\\5J:ddressing botl{ppllin~thf)~pd monarch habitat. As a result, the Department of 
· ·:: :::xfo~rior, U.S . Fl"~l{and Wiidflfe Service (USFWS), will have approximately $2 

niHflo.n to put toW~t'.ds this effort. Monarch populations are 90 percent in decline. 
Rec-~litly, NRCS:.and USFWS met to discuss how to develop a strategy. The MDC 
will al~b - be ~nv·o)y-~d and have plans to assist with their cost-share program. They 
have $1.8 rri1llfoi1 available per year through the Landowner Assistance Program, 
which is used"for private landowners to put conservation practices on their private 
farms and lands. Ms. Potter thought they would provide an incentive for farmers 
to plant milkweed. Milkweed is a host plant and a pollinator source for the 
monarch butterfly. 

Judy Grundler commented that the milkweed also provides a food source for 
certain beetles. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 9 

3. Department of Agriculture 
Judy Grundler said the steering committee from the Beef Summit submitted a 
recommendation that has been forwarded to the Governor's Office for review. 
They looked at all aspects of the beef industry. 

Missouri Department of Agriculture (MDA) has started planning for the Missouri 
State Fair, which will be held August 13-23 , 2015 . Ms. Grundler invited the 
Commission to hold their meeting during that time at the State Fair. The photo 
competition is now open for entries and closes in. June. 

They have started the first survey of the sea.~9~ff6{ the pine shoot beetle, which is 
a federally regulated insect. Some were (q1fo&fii. Scotland County, which will 
have some quarantine impacts. The quaf~~fr;~~<:~t¢a.s will be reviewed after the 
surveys are completed. __ /(}} --·-:-- ---_: <.i:: _::.. 

Ms. Grundler said that MDA h~tj:]~gb:~ived complaints··~~rfo~x in the season on the 
Pesticide Program dealing with flyQy_ers of fertilizer applidfoms. The fertilizer 
program actually resides with the 0i{iy,~rsity :9.fMissouri Scl~H~(qfNatural 
Resources. Those coaj:pL~}nts were foAv~vt~W:&l' Joe Slater. "\(/ 

Ms. Grundler thanke:~:X~·s:i~~f;fuif:D.ean B~~:1[~i}Q~'Jhe tour and the meeting space. 

The Gov~gJqr::~n,d Direc::~fJ:&_cl~:1:J::)~:~f4yg_~_ t1::~~i:~#,)o the Bootheel where they 
annoup¢:~tf~h\i'Jfoqming tri1itQ::.Cub~)'.Qfi62k.}~qwn sd!Tie contracts to export rice 
to Cub.~~J0:s. Gr~'iitjfor said ri&\y~{i${ one of ti%::first items to export. There is a 
permit"rH#~wss they)fove to go tm'${igh to export and receive commodities. Plus, 
there is anhth~~:_ p~riJlftti_1;gprocesii:#t~ receiving country will have to go through. 

_ .,:A1if;;j]·:j}~ -(KJ~l:~i@rnh9Jer~:~Jd'.~~;·:~1::~::b}:il~~t8!:::f::1\jj·ce had also gone on a European tour with 

\~~;i:!~lL:- the Gov~iii;g~\::- _ -<:::\it:::- ·-:-: ?) 

.,\~:: ::)ffFom Bradle;::ih~htio1~:d·::iM1.:e was a really nice export facility in New Madrid 
" :t§}~gty. -:{ j;)> ":·: 

4. Na·~:Jf~LResour~:~if: Conservation Service 
J .R. Fl~(~'.~:itb~ti~id Assistant Dean Baker for allowing the group to meet at 
Bradford F'iihW/i-Ie said NRCS received their budget for this year and are in better 
shape than last year. Funding should be available for partner opportunities with 
MDC and the SWCP. Staff have been really busy since the fiscal year began in 
October. They received over 1,200 applications for the Conservation Stewardship 
Program (CSP). Contracts were renewed on over 590,000 acres with a $9 million 
allocation. Payments were made on approximately 4,800 contracts for a total of 
$32 million. At the CSP renewal sign-up they had over 400 applications for 2015 . 
The obligation deadline for Environmental Quality Incentive Program (EQIP) is 
May 15. He said EQIP received a 16 percent increase in the budget for 2015 ; 
approximately $26 .3 million. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page I 0 

Mr. Flores announced the Joint Chief Partnership between the U.S. Forest Service 
and NRCS. Missouri has a first time project called the Ozark Highlands Project. 
The project will provide financial assistance to landowners, with land surrounding 
the Mark Twain National Forest, who have sediment and water quality issues. 

A map was distributed with the new Mississippi River Basin Healthy Watersheds 
Initiative project areas. The past projects were very successful. This will bring 
additional funding to Missouri. 

Natural Resources Conservation Service is y,rpi·~i:hj~ with MDC and DNR to 
finalize their Regional Conservation Partp~fshjp_ . .Program projects. 

Mr. Flores announced the next Stat.c:<J):~cl~11i:~al;:2JJ1~J:r.~i.ttee meeting will be held 
on June 30 at Bradford Farm. P<!-i:t@rfation of the·cohi\ni~sion and partners is 

- always appreciated-:- - · --<<···'.-<' ·<~\:)::.. -
·.·.·.·.·.· .. 

Nationally there will be $20 milli~foiKV.f,i.labl.~J~~:::Conserva~tJ:ii)mJovative Grants 
(CIG), which is part q:fEQIP funds. fr{{fi:~;:J.)'.#i(the University ol}Aissouri has 
received CIG funding{{{{\>.:. ·::::\}:( 

Missouri landowners :i1:mh.:~;i~gj'tQ)~1H.Jio~::::~)~h:~.b.le to protect wetlands and 
$7 5 7 ,009..:wiHJ?.~}tvailableY~fo: ease~~W~Mb.9:.proted(~g~·icultural land from non
agric~!t~frMM~M$~pdowne1:~(l;:~n re_c:~hiit$Z:;:?.:O.O - $·5·;000/acre in exchange for 

.perm~#.~B.t ease~-~R~~i. dependM!U#dh~ loc~tiBh{? 

The En~:1:\i~Agy W:.~f g~1~P._~q Prot:~i~~:1). Program received $1.8 million for repair of 

q ii:: C:~::~~:~~~;:~!ji~:~:~:::~::~:::a::,:I~r~es~::n:ei~i~:et~~s~~:::ng out 
.. <:j\ famding is linitf¢:Ci; how"~\!~1'; . they are working on agreements, like they have with 

· -::i\1.p~ and simil~fffa> what 11as been done with DNR SWCP. Eleven technicians 
ha\i~)>:c:en hired t.§Ao field work and they are anticipating expanding. Mr. Flores 
will beJ&qrkingJ &Hh SWCP on an agreement for additional district staff 
posi ti oris~\[)j):::.-::ur 

5. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 
Kenny Lovelace participated in a conference call with the National Association of 
Conservation Districts (NACD) the evening of April 7, 2015. There was a 
concern regarding a lawsuit in Iowa focused on drainage districts that have been 
shown to have high concentrations of nitrates. Depending on the outcome, Mr. 
Lov~lace felt this could be a concern for Missouri. He thought more information 
would be available for the June meeting. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 11 

Mr. Lovelace said NACD is asking for 150 "champions," which are farmers and 
ranchers who work with cover crops that keep records and would share those. He 

. said NACD would like three from each state. They would be selected by the 
states. 

At the March 17-18 Education Seminar, there were several legislators in 
attendance. Mr. Lovelace felt the meeting was successful and very informative. 
Colleen Meredith did a presentation on the budget. A decision was made to 
continue having these meetings. Lula Gregory, Program Director of Agriculture 
Education on the Move and Missouri Farmers G.M'.e, was also in attendance. She 
teaches agriculture topics to third grade stu~~#fa/rt was good to know educators 
are still teaching the young people. Cont~¢.(K~fuw Lovelace if you need her 

::lt~:::l~~~s:::ACD has liW\'~~j~~: ::e··:~;;!;;;~ifo:' s Education 
Stewardship. One NACD staffp#~6n is working on thi"s)J]~~Y have had 40+ 
requests from Missouri. Mr. Lov~f~g-~ has cont3:ct-informafffoUf anyone is 

interested. ..)\\:::... ·· :::::~()i)tli)=f ?;ll.~]~.j~l?· ··:=:::{m:1t:: 

Mr. Lovelace thanked::~i1Xt1.l~:partners foi':h~H~jng get the Soil Lab up and running. 

G. ~Q ~~~!~(j~i~~~~~;,· ··••i i;;' ;;; .••.••.•. :.:·.··········;_ ~.i!i~~') ;,;,: ;_ ;j } 
a. -=:q~:~.~ler swtt.:Q. 

jeijWfer PeJiMt presente~f~jjf~quest from the Butler County Soil and Water 
•• ·.·:-=··-= ·=·>:... Con:s:~'.i'.y~tidff:pf~tri.~.t (SWQP).to allow the board to appoint Mr. Zane 

.::)(j));?\{/\:J:..1ark"t6:~;¢~'.~rtpl~tltfi~\~!,1~xprn~~_l:term of Mr. Andy Clark due to his 
.:/:/)}/ ··:::\ifobUity to\ fµJ;fill his ei~=2fo&::te'i:m. Mr. Zane Clark and the board chairman 
"<<-=:>.. haV~jfo:i.gneci\h¥y erificati~-~f~f Supervisory Eligibility form, verifying the 

·.·.··.·.·. candfrfi.fe. meekth~ .qualifications to serve on the board. 

·:.:;:\}:~\:\: :- Thoma·~:::~l:'!dley 1~1:~~e a motion to approve the appointment of Mr. Zane 

"\{\Clark to c:ofriplete the unexpired term of Mr. Andy Clark to the Butler 
·-:::;:$\VCD.)3.B:~i-d of Supervisors. Jeff Lance seconded the motion. When 
ask~:&:ifo°tffie Chair, Thomas Bradley, 1-1. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary 
Vat~·Cf(J~;. voted in favor of the motion and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

b. Linn SWCD 
Jim Plassmeyer presented a request from the Linn County SWCD to allow 
the board to appoint Mr. Greg Williams to complete the unexpired term of 
Mr. Jack Thieme due to his death. Mr. Greg Williams and the board 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 12 

2. 

chairman have signed the Verification of Supervisor Eligibility form, 
verifying the candidate meets the qualificatio11s to serve on the board. 

1-1. Ralph Gaw made a motion to approve the appointment of Mr. Greg 
Williams to complete the unexpired term of Mr. Jack Thieme to the Linn 
SWCD Board of Supervisors. Thomas Bradley seconded the motion. 
When asked by the Chair, Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and 
Gary Vandiver voted in favor of the motion and the motion carried 
unanimous! y. 

Plan for the Future Conservation Practi~.~~{$tl~0committec 
Jim Plassmeyer stated that an update of the;{~9fri.mittee work was presented at the 
last meeting. For this meeting Mr. Plassifo~y~r·. ·i~}¢questing Commission approval 
on committee recommendations. Thte¢):'.:°C:Hnmiss"l8h:members have been involved 
with the committee. The group fo:~4@d .. on conserv~ffofopractices and how to 

----develop-a-procedure-for ail-distfr~Jffo-provide-input -or{tij~~policies .-Sinrtlano 
NRCS Standards and Specificatrons.:xeviews, the committe~:fap_ked at setting a 
schedule for practices for policy r~v%\v:_so tl1<:;/tjtstricts knov/h@J~meline. The 
committee suggestedJq:q.l<.ing at a five::;y~~n/iiyde so that within ··~:@h-year period 
districts could comn~·~i)faWt~~...for every pi~~~ttce. The groups for review, 
combining similar prad~sx:V~i~}D .. Sheet ai1((fuJl/Gully - Seedings; 2) Sheet and 
Rill/Gully_: Structural; 3)\b.razlhgj'?J~n.agemerit{4}Animal Waste; and 5) 
Nutrient ~mtf~~t; lrrigatidti)yfanagehf~h.k:~J1d Sei)§faiye Areas/Woodland. The 
comm_iJt~~::a~8id~(;lJhe orde?qbhe _gfo\ipihg§Jm- the+"eview schedule would be: 
1) Sh¥t%1d Rill/Gm:IY -Seed{tig~(g):::Cirazin!{Nt:~ii.agement/ Animal 
waste!N'Wfo~nt and "l{~~t; 3) Shee(~h:d Rill/Gully - Structural; 4) Sensitive 
Areas/W ~h~hwd; . ~iiW(S.)JrrigatiokJ\1.anagement. 

.:.(@::~:·::~::l{Wli1iJ11.::K:p_1:~c:i~~/i~~!b:~:::1~: : i~:~:]gg~ithe1~t~,- -:~here will be a 60-day comment period. 

\f}( Since di.shfo~~ .. wilfiqfow when ~-:pfabtice is scheduled for review, they can be 
"\:{\: .. preparing cO'ihhJents 'fflfo:t,1ghout the year to be ready for the comment period. The 

"\(}~pmments wiiffB~n be ~:~v1~~ed with the Commission to determine if policy 
"\Sfr?.pges are need~tj .. Staff will draft policy changes and review those with a 

techi)'.i.(:>511 commitf.~~- Mr. Plassmeyer said the Conservation Practices 
Subc°bin~nitt~e ci1.sfaissed creating a small group, similar to the State Technical 
Committ~~i: 9.f~·gehcy staff, district staff and board members, to review the 
comments 'tc{ &i'iermine what policies work to get practices on the ground. There 
will then be a second comment period of 30 days for review of the completed 
draft policies. The final draft will be submitted to the Commission for a decision. 

To assist in making the review process easier and smoothei-, the group developed 
some questions for the districts to think about and use when reviewing a practice. 
Mr. Plassmeyer said the committee also discussed reasons to deviate from the 
review schedule, which may include a significant change in the NRCS Standards 
and Specifications that would impact a practice; practice implementation issues 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 13 

found during program office practice reviews or audits ; or a major agriculture or 
economic shift that would impact practice implementation or use. 

Mr. Plassmeyer said the committee went through the steps/procedures for the 
current process on how to request a new practice and developed a written process 
for districts to follow when making a request. 

In answer to a question, Mr. Plassmeyer said this committee has their portion 
wrapped up, but thought there were other topics/issues that this group could 
discuss, i.e., cost-share rules, landowner paym~~f.~:; .etc. Mr. Gaw mentioned he 
was impressed with the enthusiasm of the gq:@i/ Mr. Vandiver shared this 
impression and felt all the groups should.qf~9fumended for their work. 

H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to appf9.:~:::f il: P:~:~!~f:fdi'J.he Future Current 
Conservation Practices committ~¢%J~fommendati~Anm practice policy review 
and new practice procedure to :~'.Mhcorporated into the ··.Pl~hJor the Future 
effective on January 1, 2016. Tfrdfo~s Bradley ~~conded thtJ!i9tion. When asked 
by the Chair, Thomas Bradley, I-I. I~:~il~h . Gaw/J~ff Lance and:::q:~i:y Vandiver 
voted in favor of the .nfo~i_pn and the rrtoJfo~i};:~f+'ied unanimouslf(} 

a. Scotland sw:2~'.[~:jrll~J:4~M to ~:~~~j~~#.gJ~xisting Livestock Exclusion 
Practice Compoi{~~Js ··-=:\}{\::.:; ··::\/>: .. 
JimJ?l:~.~.~meyer pre:s:!fo~ed a ·i:eq#.~~tfrom ·th~)~.~otland County SWCD to 

..:::lfoy:it26sW~h~re assisfah~e rp~d~W:V:Wfa!?l~ fol 'water supply components in 
<JB¢ N472 .. LIV~.stock E~:bfa~foi{practi2"t:{I:his practice was originally set up 

'·fo}~clude l]&~~tock froi1f w6odland areas, but was later changed to 
intfo~:~ .. fe11¢{Wg::Q.ff a ponl@:.other sensitive areas from livestock access . 

.. :::=:t/H\it\':::::.The dhf.iJ~ff~Vet{lrn~/U~Jor £]:~µ.downer receiving cost-shai:e to exclude 
.. /}}/:·:- ·-··· · · ·••::::\):fy~stocitfifap a p011c(#{$;ls.o ''hiclude cost-share for installing a water tank 

(\ ';] • •• :~~;lii;~,:~::r~[.;:~n:::::~~ :on:mber 2009, the Commission 
·-::\:)::.. concurreWW,ith implementing a Practice Policy Review. If comments were 

·-:·:+\.: received 9dfa practice, those comments would be retained until that 
-::=::::iJ.q,1ctice,::§.1:#$'' opened for policy review . 

. ·.·.· · . .-.. ·.·.·.· .· ... -
Th.li~Af~~tock exclusion practices (N472 and DFR-5) went through a 
policy review in FYl 3 with policy changes being implemented in FY14. 
During this review process, comments were submitted from districts about 
providing cost-share assistance for a water supply, but were not adopted in 
the policies. A resolution from the Missouri Association of Soil and Water 
Conservation Districts addressing this issue was also received. Mr. 

. Plassmeyer said the ponds were existing ponds and not those built through 
the cost-share program. Several options were taken into consideration 
when the practice was last reviewed. Discussions and clarifications were 
held on the cost for the use of the pond for a watering source vs. a 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 14 

watering tank and what would actually be covered. In response to a 
question, Mr. Plassmeyer estimated the policy would be up for review 
again in 2020. 

Jeff Lance made a motion to hold Scotland SWCD's comments until the 
N472 practice comes up for review as outlined in the Plan for the Future 
schedule. H. Ralph Gaw seconded the motion. When asked by the Chair, 
Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in 
favor of the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Crawford SWCD - Request to Allp$fji~g;.e Than One Liming Event 
per Maintenance Period .-://(( '\. 
Jim Plassmeyer presented a requ_~$(froili~Qr_?wford County SWCD to have 
the DSP 3 .4 Grazing Systern, J:-j1;1~- Practic~::pqljcy changed to allow 

_____________ a_p_p_l_ic_a_ti_o_n_o_f_l_i1_n_e_m_o_1.,.,.·e,:::~ti~ff:8~1ce per field.'\{i~+--:-_-------------

Mr. Plassmeyer read fr~:~h: ·111~_DSP 3.4 Policy in ~~;~ib_9_st-Share Handbook 
that covered the lime applidtfo.p_pol.i9y{t}Ie then intr&f!fo~-~ Will 
McClain, CnrW.foxµ County bo:ar~)n~foher University E~i~hsion. Dr. 
McClain saicNW~tM~m~ soils neetfffr¥~:e than one lime application, 
especially in C1~~W.f.6W(Q.qp_11ty. The::h9'.?~:~ was asking to change the policy 
language to add ''#)1ee.de:i{ht:the conthr@p.~riod." In answer to a 
ql}~_§Ji9.1;,_Dr. McCfa'.{~\ .responH~~Jh~t th~ :pi{)§ very, very low in some 

.. :::fi:~:ftfr{:Th~::s.oil test v;;q~J.d ~~dfrWghfd~Jo.r a .. 26.ntrol of the number of 
{ # pplicatioh$\iffhe boar<l)k~'.~kihg for -~ppi'.bval if a soil test required 

· ·:aB9~ber appifo~tion with"MJ he contract period. He stated another reason 
w~Jl~:J>e if~fh~~::y_nd of tlt~)i.scal year the district had funding available, 

.. //{]}\\:::::)his w8#.tt.ff~H6W:tii~hi1)9 gehfo~re cost-share on the ground. Dr. McClain 
.. -:(}:y:::-:···· · · · . ·.:-: : : ::;::%9n.:uner1teK_~hat evei{thqligh this request could be for all counties, soils 
\){:( ~~;~:j :J'.iot all tfrej:same across\h~ state. As mentioned, the soil test would be 

· · <>:::,.. the ·iGfas:: · <()}>: . 
·-: :::~: ~~ :~ ::: :-. . .·. ... . . . . ....... ". ·:::<::\ ·-::::{::; 

. <::~\\::-. Colleen M~redith commented that having to go back into contracts over 
·-::::\\ :multiple );'~~!·scan be difficult administratively. She mentioned there is 

-.:?'.~l§o a C(:lp:f 6.r lime on grazing systems for each acre . 
. ... . ::.. ..::-:-:::::;'./ 

·.;.·.·.·. · ... -.· ·,·.·.·.· . 
.. .......... 

I-I. R~1pii° Gaw made a motion to hold Crawford SWCD's comments until 
the DSP 3 .4 Grazing System Lime Practice comes up for review as 
outlined in the Plan for the Future schedule. Jeff Lance seconded the 
motion. When asked by the Chair, Thomas Bradley, I-I. Ralph Gaw, Jeff 
Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor of the motion and the motion 
carried unanimously. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 15 · 

3. Nodaway - Request for Policy Variance on the DSL-1 Permanent Vegetative 
Cover Establish Practice 
Jim Plassmeyer presented the Nodaway SWCD request for approval to continue 
with contract SOE 019-15-0034 DSL-01 Permanent Vegetative Cover 
Establishment for Mr. Herbert Nicholson on fields that do not currently meet the 
erosion requirements. Mr. Plassmeyer informed the Commission of the DSL-01 
erosion requirements and provided some background information. Mr. Nicholson 
had signed up for the DSL-01 contract on three fields . The District Technician 
worked on RUSLE2 calculations and determined .the fields were eligible based on 
erosion requirements. The contract was signed .~h,:q::approved by the board on 
December 19, 2014. The NRCS District Cous~:frv~honist reviewed the calculations 
and found them to be incorrect. The landoW.i%f~as contacted and informed that 
he was not eligible for the DSL-01 practN€?rii~J~1.1downer appealed to the 
Nodaway County Board of Supervj_~§l.%since the .. 26foract was already approved. 
The lime and phosphorus had ah:¢.@)(been applied. tif~))Todaway SWCD is 
requesting approval to continu6/W.M1 the contract on fiefd~hbat do not currently 
meet the erosion requirements. }Jit t E?.JassmeyerJalked ab~ti{~pJJ1e specifics of the 
contract and provided language froftifilw rul~~~@);iere the Co1rthfo;..~ion has 
authority to grant a V,<;i~}~pce . Discuss16M\w~$Wlield regarding wh~ther fertilizer, 
lime and seed have ~m@%f:J~~.~n applieci/8/%·dered and not yet applied. 

· ·::~~~ ~~}=: ~· ·: ::}~~~~~~t~=~:: ;:::.. ~-: :~:~~ ~~~m~::::: .. 
Thomas Bradley a motioi(fo. grailf¥v.CJ.riance onJ})~ erosion requirement of the 
DSL-01 r~.r;i:mm~_nt Vegedt~Y:~ Covef~~t5t.9Jishrrii#b.9 Nodaway SWCD allowing 
the contihti:~iil01tof contract ·s:GE 01.9~:f§:t5034::for MY Herbert Nicholson. Jeff 
Lanc~~l~$.6nded "1ifa%potion. w1i~~fMk6d by""HM:ohair, Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph 
Gaw, Nf'.f:LCJ.nce and.?Oary Vancfry~f voted in favor of the motion and the motion 

, ) )~w;~~;~:::~~1r~::~:;wkc$ ::!1sviding RUSLE2 training and utilization to 
\{} ( their staff\ J hi.s traThfog._is being .. i~{iforded and made available to the district staff. 
"\/>:.. ·-::::\}\.. ..:::=:::J:\ •. 
4. O:\ ).f.ollow-up on .~§quest fo)~;xtend Maintenance Life for Stream Buffer 

· Pi'.Actices \:}: · ·.· 

A\~R).~\eeman p¥$¢nted information as a follow-up to the request from Hickory 
Com1.ty:iSJVCD .. t.tf pi·ovide an additional out-of-production incentive as the 
rnainte11al1ce lif~(expires on WQ 10 Stream Protection Buffer practices, which was 
first prese1~te:d?M the June 10, 2014, Commission meeting. Staff received 
comments and now has draft policy language for Section G. Buffer Maintenance 
Extension of the Cost-Share Handbook for Commission approval. The practices 
include WQ I 0 Stream Protection, N391 Riparian Forest Buffer, N393 Filter Strip, 
and N386 Field Border. This policy will be effective July 1, 2015 (FYl6). 

Jim Plassmeyer added that the district boards would make the decision whether to 
offer this practice for extending buffer contracts and provide the additional 
incentive, since the funding would come from the district's cost-share allocation. 



MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
April 8, 2015 
Page 16 

H. 

I. 

J. 

Acres in buffer are not automatically approved; this is dependent on the decision 
of the local SWCD boards. 

I-I. Ralph Gaw made a motion to approve the establishment of a one-time 
incentive payment for buffer maintenance extensions for N386 Field Border, 
N391 Riparian Forest Buffer, N393 Filter Strip, and/or the WQlO Stream 
Protection practices to begin July 1, 2015, according to the policy presented. 
Thomas Bradley seconded the motion. When asked by the Chair, Thomas 
Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor of the 
motion and the motion carried unanimously. ::::JX> 

~~:]b,~;c~~n1!;';1!~~s ······•••••••••······} i: ':I• ]:.:.::.:: .. :._ ... :._:· ....... . -- -- --:--:-:·:·:-:--:-:-;-.--- -- - -

SUGGESTED DATE(S) OF N~~~J\1EETJ.NGS "\:j~~~~[j[~}>: .: 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled i&%me .. Ui/~015, at the D~liK:c;_enter, near 

Portageville. :::::,.i:;::f/\\:::::.... · ·:::::q~)j:·;ij::.:.;:'.'.: :· · ":::;::::: 

~Dif.~~~~~ilfog\ion :~ ;~~;~~~ ;~~·1~~!(~:'.~:~ .~~'•p m. Thomas Brndley 
seconded the.J ff9'.ffrii1 . Wh~ri;asked by::t)~.~. :G.h~~t.Tfr8i$~sJ3radley, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff 
Lance and G~i;~f:iY.andiver\~~t~d in fav.3{Wfffie motion·:~hd the motion carried 
unanimously. ··::::\\::.. <? "::;{\: 

·.·.·.· .. -. .-::=:::::::::·:: ... - ·.·.·.·.·-·, 

.. :}//ff\\>:::, . ·.::;<l)\{:··.··1c :;::::;::::<:::> \:§f:~B:g:tf ull y SU bmi tted, 

{;; y····. ··.·.······• ; ;;; •••••···· ·····•· ' >··· .......••• ,. 
·.·.·.·.· .·. ····· 

"/:<:;., "\(j\ 

Appl
·oved by ·. ···<·•·•• ': \\ .. :::·:·:··.··.·. :~ 

_.;'.: :::::-:-:-:-· 
. •:\ :~:: : :: :-: ~ ;~ :::~ :: : ~ :: ·> 

·· · Colleen Meredith, Director 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 

Gary Vandiver, Chairman 
Missouri Soil and Water Districts Commission 

/djs 



01 
. /:·;·~: ::~:~~:~~:·.~~.::f Jt:~: . :~.,· .):·:~·- ···~: .. 
;STA,TJf (ii?.JJ{18;.S&:tJR( Man Blunt, Governor • Doyle Childers, Direccor 

DEPA:RT·MENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
_____ ··. ,;~:-·. '' "" ":;":: ·::·::r. ..... : --------------------- --

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

.. ' 

MEMORANDUM 

2008-033 

April 29, 2008 

All Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

Bill Foster, Director(!?~ 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 

www.<lnr.mo.gov 

Clarification on the use of the N312 Animal Waste Systems Policy and 
Establishing per Acre Incentive Maximums for N332 Contour Buffer Strips, 
N386 Field Borders, N393 Filter Strips and N391 Riparian Forest Buffers, 
Effective July 1, 2008. 

At the March 13, 2008 meeting of the Soil and Water Districts Commission, the N312 Animal 
Waste Systems practice was reviewed in order to clarify the eligible components and rates for 
cost-share. The N312 Animal Waste Systems practice is currently offered through the AgNPS 
SALT program. The commission clarified using a cost-share rate of 50 percent for waste 
collection areas and a rate of 75 percent on areas of the system serving as storage and treatment. 
Bedding and feeding areas are not eligible for cost-share. The maximum amount of cost-share 
that a landowner can receive for each individual facility was set at $50,000 for dairy 
facilities, $50,000 for swine facilities, $25,000 for poultry facilities and $25,000 for beef 
facilities. If a district has a request for cost-share on any of these facilities or other livestock 
facilities, district staff should contact the program office for determination of eligible components 
prior to the approval of an application. 

Also at the March 13, 2008 commission meeting, the commission approved the maximum 
incentive rates that can be offered for the following practices: $800 per acre for N332 Contour 
Buffer Strips, $600 per acre for N386 Field Borders, $1,000 per acre for N393 Filter Strips 
and $1,200 per acre for N391 Riparian Forest Buffers. These changes can be found in the 
attached policy for each practice. Districts may set the incentive rate below the maximum. 

You will also find attached the N472 Use Exclusion Practice policy stating that a $5/acre 
incentive payment is offered. This was inadvertently deleted from the policy when revised 
September 27, 2007. 

Please replace pages III.17, III.20-21, III.34, III.39, III.40, and III.41 and add 41 .a and 41 .b in 
your AgNPS SALT Handbook. . 

0 
Recycled r 01pcr 





Animal Waste Management Resource Concern 

N312 Beef Waste Management 

Purpose 
Manage waste from agricultural production in a manner that prevents or minimizes degradation 
of soil and water resources. Such systems are planned to preclude discharge of pollutants to 
surface or ground water and to recycle waste through correct soil application to agricultural land. 

Applicability 
Practice applies on farms where: 
1. Wastes are generated by agricultural production. 

2. Soil, water, and plant resources are adequate to properly manage the waste. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Waste Storage 
Facility (313 ), Critical Area Planting (342), Vegetation Establishment, Herbaceous· Seedi11g . 
(723), Roofs and Covers (367), Nutrient Management (590), and Heavy Use Area Protection 
(561) contained in the Field Office Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. The intent of this practice is to store animal waste. Therefore, a signed "N3 l 2 Operation and 
Maintenance Statement" (which can be found in the Appendix) must be completed prior to 
the contract's board approval. Only contracts for lagoons are exempt from the form 
requirement. 

2. All nutrients applied must be in accordance to the Nutrient Management (590) standard. 

3. Design plans must be scanned into MoSWIMS as a document type of "Design Plans" prior to 
submission for contract approval. 

4. Cost-share is autlzorizedfor: 

a. 75% cost-share for: 

1) Floor space utilized to store dry waste from paved feedlot. 

2) Roof to cover dry storage area. The square footage of the roofing must equal the 
square footage of floor space, as specified above. 

3) Wall necessary to enclose dry storage a~·ea. 
. · . 

4) Collection gutter or basin from feedlot to storage area. 

b. 50% cost-share for: 

1) Winter feeding stations (area of floor that is utilized to collect waste in feeding and 
travel areas) . 

V-70 0310112014 

. .. . .. 



.. :·.:.· . 

. c. Critical Area Seeding. Permanent vegetative cover based on the Critical.Area Seeding 
component. 

5. Cost-share is n.ot authorized for: 

a. Permitted animal waste systems, under the conditions listed in section V, subsection I. 

b. Any components of the· animal waste system above the minimum and necessary for the 
number of animals at the time of application. 

c. Isolated structures not considered a component of a waste management system. 

d. Bedding and bunk feeding areas, including roof. 

e. Costs incurred to develop or implement a compi·ehensive nutrient management plan. 

f. Mo.bile agitation, pumping, and related equipment. 
. .... ---····---··----- -· ----··· .... ···- ·· ·· . -· .. --·-····----------··---- -· ... .. -· --·-·. . -... - .. ----------- .... ··--- ·· -- . 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
I. Assistance is limited to 75% of the county average cost, not to exceed the state average cost. 
2. Not to exceed $25,000 per cooperator. 

------
Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as a document type 
"Map" in MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the need for the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon the minimum exte11t necessary, and to certify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within commission policy. 

Acres Served 
Acreage is equal to zero. 

Extent Installed 
Animal Units. 

Maintenance Life 
10 years . 

V-71 03/01/2014 



Animal Waste Management Resource Concern 

N312 Dairy Waste Management 

Purpose 
Manage waste from agricultural production in a manner that prevents or minimizes degradation 
of soil and water resources. Such systems are planned to preclude discharge of pollutants to 
surface or ground water and to recycle waste through correct soil application to agricultural land. 

Applicability 
Practice applies on farms where: 
1. Wastes are generated by agricultural production. 

2. Soil, water, and plant resources are adequate to properly manage the waste. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Waste Storage 
Facility (313), Critical Area Planting (342), Vegetation Establishment, Herbaceous Seeding 

· (723), Waste Treatment Lagoon (359), Roofs and Covers (367), Pumping Plant (533), Nutrient 
Management (590), and Heavy Use Area Protection (561) contained in the Field Office 
Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. The intent of this practice is to store animal waste. Therefore, a signed "N3 l 2 Operation and 
Maintenance Statement" (which can be found iri the Appendix) must be completed prior to 
contract board approval. Contracts for lagoons only are exempt from the form requirement. 

2. All nutrients applied must be in accordance to the Nutrient Management (590) standard. 

3. Design plans must be scanned into MoSWIMS as a document type of "Design Plans" prior to 
submission for contract approval. 

4. Cost-share is authorizedfor: 

a. 75% cost-share for: 

1) Flush tanks. 

2) Conveyance of waste to treatment area (such as reception tank, gutter or storage 
tank). 

3) Waste storage tank and/or pond. 

4) Solids separator. 

5) Solids storage area, including roof. 

b. 50% cost-share for: 

1) Area of the floor utilized for collection of waste in feeding and travel areas . 

V-72 03/01/2014 



2) Roof and gutter covering travel areas. The square footage of the roofing must equal 
the square footage of floor space, as specified above. 

c. Critical Area Seeding. Permanent vegetative cover based on the Critical Area Seeding 
component. 

5. Cost-share is not authorized for: 

a. Permitted animal waste systems, under the conditions iisted in section V, subsection I. 

b. Bedding and bunk feeding areas, including roof. · 

c. Any components of the animal waste system above the minimum and necessary for the 
number of animal units at the time of application. 

d. Irrigation systems, spreading equipment, and other components required for field 
---·- --applicatio1L-··-·-- .. ·····-· ... ···----------:---·-·----- -·-····--···-··· ··- ----------······ ·----·-··· ······ --- · -·· · -·· · · ·-······-··----·----·-··········-·· -

e. Costs incurred to develop or implement a comprehensive r:iutrient management plan. 

f. Mobile agitation, pumping, and related equipment. 
-·- -- ------- -- - --
Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Assistance is limited to 75% of the county average cost, not to exceed the state average cost. · 

. . 2. Not to exceed $50,000 per cooperator. 

. · .... _·:.:- ·-. 
.. • .. 

Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must b~ scanned and attached as a document type 
"Map" in MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the need for the practice, for design of the 
pi·actice based upon the minimum extent necessary, and to certify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within commission policy. 

Acres Served 
Acreage is equal to zero. 

Extent Installed 
Aniinal Units. 

Maintenance Life 
10 years. 

··-· · . 

V-73 03/01/2014 



Animal Waste Management Resource Concern 

N312 Poultry Waste Management 

Purpose 
Manage waste from agricultural production in a manner that prevents or minimizes degradation 
of soil and water resources. Such systems are planned to preclude discharge of pollutants to 
surface or ground water and to recycle waste through correct soil application to agricultural land. 

Applicability 
Practice applies on farms where: 
1. Wastes are generated by agricultural production. 

2. Soil, water, and plant resources are adequate to properly manage the waste . 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Waste Storage 
Facility (313), Critical Area Planting (342), Vegetation Establishment, Herbaceous Seeding 
(723), Roofs and Covers (367), and Nutrient Management (590) contained in the Field Office 
Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. The intent of this practice is to store animal waste. Therefore, a signed "N3 l 2 Operation and 
Maintenance Statement" (which can be found in the Appendix) must be completed prior to 
the contract's board approval. Only contracts for lagoons are exempt from the form 
requirement. 

2. All nutrients applied must be in accordance to the Nutrient Management (590) standard. 

3. Design plans must be scanned into MoSWIMS as a document type of "Design Plans" prior to 
submission for contract approval. 

4. Cost-share is authorized/or: 

a. 75% cost-share for: 

1) Floor space utilized to store dry waste. 

2) Roof to cover dry storage area. The square footage of the roofing must equal the 
square footage of floor space, as specified above. 

3) . Wall necessary to enclose dry storage area. 

4) Loading ramp. 

b. Critical Area Seeding. Permanent vegetative cover based on the Critical Area Seeding 
component. 

V-74 03/01/2014 



5. Cost-share is not authorized/or: 

a. Permitted animal waste systems, under the conditions listed in section V, subsection I. 

b. Any components of the animal waste system above the minimum and necessary for the 
number of animals at the time of application. 

c. Floor area utilized for anything other than dry waste storage, based on current animal 
units. 

d. Clean bedding storage (such as sawdust, wood chips, etc.). 

e. Waste facility or "high-rise" house for layers. 

f. Costs incurred to develop or implement a comprehensive nutrient management plan . 

.. . ...... ... _ . .. _________ i_~~~i_l_e agi ~~-ti~ ~~dJ_~~ p~~~~:- an~. !.·~l~~~-~ ~q~_!P.!:1.~-~!: ______________ .. ___ ....... ___________ ... ---··· .......... __ _ 
h. Composter. Cost-share is authorized under N317 Composting Facility. 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Assistance is limited to 75% of the county average cost.,not to exceed-the-state average cost:-
2. Not to exceed $25,000 per cooperator. 

Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as a document" type 
"Map" in MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the need for the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon the minimum extent necessary, and to ce1iify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within commission policy. 

Acres Served 
Acreage is equal to zero. 

Extent Installed 
Animal Units. 

Maintenance Life 
10 years. 

V-75 . 03/01/2014 



Animal Waste Management Resource Concern 

N312 Swine Waste Manage1nent 

Purpose 
Manage waste from agricultural production in a manner that prevents or minimizes degradation 
of soil and water resources. Such systems are planned to preclude discharge of pollutants to 
surface or ground water and to recycle waste through correct soil application to agricultural land. 

Applicability 
Practice applies on farms where: 
1. Wastes are generated by agricultural production. 

2. Soil, water, and plant resources are adequate to properly manage the waste. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for Waste Storage 
Facility (313), Waste Treatment Lagoon (359), Critical Area Planting (342), Vegetation 
Establishment, Herbaceous Seeding (723), Roofs and Covers (367), Pumping Plant (533), 
Nutrient Management (590), and Heavy Use Area Protection (561) contained in the Field Office 
Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. The intent of this practice is to store animal waste. Therefore, a signed "N312 Operation and 
Maintenance Statement" must be completed prior to the contract's board approval. Only 
contracts for lagoons are exempt from this requirement. 

2. All nutrients applied must be in accordance to the Nutrient Management (590) standard. 

3. Design plans must be scanned into MoSWIMS as a document type of "Design Plans" prior to 
submission for contract approval. 

4. Cost-share is authorizedfor: 

a. 75% cost-share for: 

1) Flush tanks. 

2) Conveyance of waste to treatment area (such as reception tank, gutter, or storage 
tank). 

3) Solids separator. 

4) Solids separation basin. 

5) Solids storage area, including roof. 

6) Waste storage pond and/or lagoon. 

7) Pit storage and underground collection associated with farrowing, growing, gestation, 
feeding, finishing, or nursery buildings. 

V-76 03/0l/20t4 



b. Critical Area Seeding. Permanent vegetative cover based on the Critical Area Seeding 
component. 

5. Cost-slzare is not authorized/or: 

a. Permitted animal waste systems, under the conditions listed in section V, subsection I. 

b. System elements utilized for anything other than treatment, storage, and collection of 
animal waste. 

c. Any components of the animal waste system above the minimum and necessary for the 
number of animal units at the time of application. 

d. Irrigation systems, spreading equipment, or field application components. 

e. Slatted floors . 

---··---- ------- -· f.- .. . Cosfs .. iffcuri·ed-foae··iel op"Cfr" im pl ein~nfaccnripi:eheii~iive- niifrie11f maiiag"C~iiierif pla·n.~- - -- .. --- -
g. Mobile agitation, pumping, and related equipment. 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Assistance is limited to 75% of the county average cost, not to exceed the state average cost. 
2. Not to exceed $50,000 per cooperator. 

Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as a document type 
"Map" in MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the need for the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon. the minimum extent necessary, and to certify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within conunission polic~. 

Acres Served 
Acreage is equal to zero. 

Extent Installed 
Animal Units. 

Maintenance Life 
I 0 years. 

V-77 03/01/2014 



02 
N340 Cover Crops Practice 

Purpose 
Provide operators an incentive to encourage the adoption of cover crops for reducing soil 
erosion, improving water quality and soil health. 

The definition of operator for the purpose of this practice is any individual farming the land, who 
has incurred the expenses for the cover crops. The operator's name should also be listed on file 
with FSA as the operator of such land. 

Applicability _/ :{(:/ .. 
Applies to cropland acres where row crops are grown an!;I) iqfiJ rosion needs to be prevented or 

water quality and soil health improved. <•••;••i .'. •• • ••••• 
Erosion Requirements .;:::::;::::::::;·· ·::::::;::::::· 
Practice has no erosion requirements to qualifyf \{16wever pre and po.S:(faqsion rates need to be 
recorded in MOS WIMS to capture the erosior{b~h~fits of the practice. ·-::\}:\ 

specifications .-:-:-:-: '°· ··:::::tm::)t:::::: ... :(~jf ):-· .. \{:):;~:)\, 
The completed components of the pi:Mt!~Y.:nmst meet tHW:&.R.cs Standards and s·pecifications for 
Conservation Crop Rotation (328), aiiW¢~\i.~'.i\G.~·op (340)\~9.at~ined in the Field Office Technical 

Guide. .\i~~:~)\:: .. ·:·::\{)\t\::\::.. ··::::::jjit·))\:::-. 

~ol:: contract m u~t~~~;:;,~:~? ~~e of :!~t~Ji~\@~:::,\ ii&h•••:::;~tor is parti ci pa ting, the 
landowner must ccWrtp.1.~te an "Qp¢rator Aufh9fization" form. 

:· ~~0~~l!~:i~~::!~~~;:;:~li!:::~::1:~i~~:~t: :i:::~::o:::d:::~:nc::; :r0:::,i:~. 
4. Prod~;~IS#j::~~:op follow;:~:~:if1K~ co~:l~:~§h)p must be planted using a no-till system on the 

contractect" .acfo9_,_ No-till is d~fl.ned as per standard 329 for Residue and Tillage Management 

No-Till. ·-::::::: :~[\\.. ):~)::l:j): 

5. Payment can be i~-i~ig·~::a.ft'8M~[~·-till planting of the production crop into the (terminated) cover 
crop or after May 25 i{thlproduction crop has not yet been planted. 

6. Cooperators must adopt cover crops in compliance with the Cover Crop (340) standard as 
part of this practice. In addition: 

a. All cover crop seedings must be planned with a minimum of 25% cool-season annual 
grass, small grain component or warm season grass. (Caution should be taken when 
selecting Annual Ryegrass for a cover crops mix.) 

b. Spring planted cover crops must have been planted at least 60 days prior to being 
terminated. 



c. Covei· crops will be terminated as late as practical to maximize plant biomass 
production and nutrient uptake. Landowners need to take into consideration timing 
for next crop and crop insurance requirements. 

d. Cover crops will not be harvested for grain, seed or hayed. 

e. Cover crops may be grazed once the forages have reached a minimum height of 6 - 8 
inches with enough biomass produced to justify grazing. However grazing should not 
occur if it will damage the forages so that their effo;~~~yeness as a cover crop would be 
impacted. Grazing will need to stop once the for1:J:M'.~(have been grazed down to 4 
inches. .-::/~:@rt· 

f. Tillage cannot be used to terminate the ~9.Y@~[Ji!~~::q~:~::\\:::::: .. 
..::::::/::::::: ··::::::=:::::-. 

g. N595 Pest Management practice n~~y::~QGtilized to tenni~~:[t~JJ1e cover crop. The pest 
_ management pilln must_be. develop~iffo. address the terminatih\{::Qf-the cover crop and 

all pest issues that may occur during tfr¥n~xt pro9..~.qtion crop g}dW~:~}g season. 

h. A soil sample for the Inifi~1\:$.t?_1:i:dard S~-~l::i~;~~ftjj~i~~j~:kage test thr~:;~K\he Missouri 
Soil Heath Assessment C~h1W:{$.})j\C) must H~J~.~-en on each field prior to seeding 
cover crops. The initial sarripi:~. wl.Hht~~.9. to be tak~p;:.pnly for the first state cost-share 
contract on thefi.~_l_d. The nuri%h. of ~-~hl:pf~§;.per fiefri)h;Ul be determined by the 

:::~~i:g~i[f ~~:~~;~;~k;t::::~~~;;~t-l~!=~f~~\1i~'::llow-Up Standard Soil 
Health Pacld~¢Jl:iat lan'.d.B~ners are ·-~ifc~guraged to do four or five years after 
.imPl~m.~pting 26Y.h . .sr:91?'.~%~f~:J~.~ld. riWJ~mdowner receives cost-share again on a 

./ ?fi:Mtf f6ti{ fa,Jive )ie~NJater fo\ }ij.pJ.ymerii} he practice, the landowner can receive a 
/~:{?tost-share.1faY.i11.ent o:ti:Jh.~. cost ofHMM$t°The number of samples per field will be 
·.\()getennined bylfi¢.::~amphifa:requireme.i1ts provided by SHAC. 

6. The N~:2~§tMP JS Agro11:::j.4Q:. Co~:1!t:8h~6p Design Worksheet documentation must be 

scanned intcrtqg~;1IMS as :~~~porting documentation when the contractis submitted for 
review. 

. . 
·.-.·.·.·· · 

·.· .·.· 
Cost-share is authorized:\:}:)/: 

a. For incentive paymelit.s for operators (including landowner-operators) who implement all 
required components of the Cover Crop practice. 

b. For soil health assessment testing through the University of Missouri Soil Health 
Assessment Center (SI-IAC) for either the Initial Standard Soil Health Package or Follow
Up Standard Soil Health Package. 

Cost-share is not authorized for: 
a. Cover crops in pasture or hay land 



Maximum State Cost-Share 
I. Operators participating in the Cover Crop practice will be eligible for an incentive payment of 

$30/acre/year for a I or 2 species cover crop mix or $40/acre/year for 3 or more species 
cover crop mix with a life time maximum of $20,000 per operator. Utilize Practice Limits 
Detail report in MOSWIMS to ensure compliance with applicable maximums. 

Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as "Map Document" in 
MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities _/()). 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the _ J.1~:~Wfor the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon the minimum extent necessary, an,_ci/W:BH{ffy.,that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within co.1:nd11s's.lon p'6ifoy, 

:::::::·:::~:in cover crops ·:······ )::'.·: . ../£.•·•········•:•:•••·•······••••••·····:,: : )•••····· 

Acres :}f \::·:-. "'\)\:{)/ "\{) 

Maintenance Life ·.\( ~ '.:if:••••;•• t: .. . \ ;) h ... 
This practice is completeq .. -µ,mm contracfp~ymenhiWt¢fqreJhl¢~~m~act will not have·a 

maintenance life. ·:••••• f \ • it ··: • \ ;• \ l'i•}::. \ ? 

if I ;:::::: t:'.:;: \ 
·::::::<iit:,:.. \ti)< ::::::r:::: 

·····•\t ) ••••••· ;• )! 





. -··-·--·· . -- -- --·- ···· · :;-:.:-:.::::.==-:=;-::--...:.:....:: ::-:....-=-===::_-:::=.:=:.= :-.. -·-=--:....:: .. ·:. :.._ .. -.:......:.:;.:._··--.: .. ---- · --···-- --· --.. ---· ·- - · - - · ·-· 

Jerem iah \YI. Uay) Nixon, Governor • Sara Parker Pauley, Director 

OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

DATE: 

TO: 

July 14, 2014 

MEMORANDUM 
2015-002 

All Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

FROM: ~olleen Meredith, Program Director 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 

SUBJECT: Statewide Cover Crop Pilot Practice 

\V\V\v.dnr.n10.gov 

The Soil and Water Districts Commission, at their June 10, 2014 meeting, approved 
modifications to and expansion of the current Cover Crop Pilot. Pilot projects are for the purpose 
of creating a trial period for testing, development and implementation of new cost-share practices 
appropriate for future soil and water conservation district resource needs. Pilot projects are 
conducted for a specified period oftime and in a limited area. The Chariton County Soil and 
Water Conservation District (SWCD) has been implementing a cover crop pilot since 2012. The 
pilot project is being expanded so that each soil and water conservation district has the 
opp011unity for landowners/operators to implement cover crops on a limited number of acres for 
fiscal year 2015 (FY15). Program staff worked with the Chariton SWCD and partners to adapt 
their pilot practice for statewide implementation. The practice will provide a $30 per acre 
incentive for operators implementing cover crops under a required no-till system, with a 20 acre 
maximum per operator. A $4,800 maximum allocation will be provided to each soil and water 
conservation district in FYI 5 for the cover crop practice. 

The Commission approved funding of this pilot practice through reallocation of cost-share funds 
that were not obligated in the Nutrient and Pest Management Resource Concern for FY15. The 
N340 Cover Crops - Pilot Practice has been entered in MoSWIMS under a new resource concern 
called Pilot Cover Crop. 

A copy of the N340 Cover Crop Pilot Practice policies and ranking sheet are attached to this 
memo. The Commission authorized an open comment period for suggested changes to the pilot 
practice to start December 1, 2014 and conclude May 1, 2015. The comments will be used to 
determine changes and additions for transitioning the practice to regular cost-share planned for 
fiscal year 2016 (FY 16). 

.., 
~J 

Un·~cktl l ';1 1u·r 



All SWCD 
July 14, 2014 
Page Two 

Please keep in mind these questions while you are implementing this pilot practice in your 
district for feedback during the comment period: 

1. How easy is it for landowners to implement the cover crop practice policies? 
2. What are the pros and cons of offering a cover crop practice in your district? 
3. What parts of the policy should be revised in the pilot practice if it is transitioned to a 

statewide practice? 
4. How many landowners are expressing interest in implementing a cover crop practice? 

Please contact your district coordinator if you have any questions. Thank you. 

CM:mm 

Enclosures 



-- -- ·--- -- ----- -- -
-==--~- ·.:.:. :-- _ -·-.·- : - : .. :-.==-====-_:._-====--==--=====---==--==.-==-=- :::- - ---- - --- -.. ·· ·-···· -·. -- - ·------ - .. -·-·. - · - ---- ·-· ·- - ····· -· -- - ·- ·· -···-

N340 Cover Crops- Pilot Practice 

Purpose 
Provide operators an incentive to encourage the adoption of cover crops for reducing soil 
erosion, improving water quality and soil health. 

Applicability 
Applies to no-till cropfand acres where row crops are grown and a cover crop management 
system is not currently being implemented. 

Erosion Requirements 
Practice has no erosion requirements. 

Specifications 
The completed components of the practice must meet the NRCS Standards and Specifications for 
Conservation Crop Rotation (328), Residue and Tillage Management No-Till (329) and Cover 
Crop (340) contained in the Field Office Technical Guide. 

Policies 

1. Contracted acres must currently be in a minimum of a2 species primary crop rotation. 

2. Primary crop preceding and following the cover crop must have been planted using a no-till 
method on the contract acres. No-till is defined as per standard 329 for Residue and Tillage 
Management No-Till. 

3. Only fall seeded cover crops are eligible. 

4. Payment can be issued after no-till planting of the pri!Ilary crop into the (te1minated) cover 
crop or after May 25 ifthe primary crop has not yet been planted. 

5. Cooperators must adopt cover crops in compliance with the Cover Crop (340) standard as 
·part of this practice. In addition: · 
a. All cover crop mixes must include at least 25% cool-season annual grass or small grain 

component. (Caution should be taken when selecting Annual Ryegrass for a cover crop 
mix.) 

b. Cover crops will be left undisturbed until just prior to the planting of the primary crop. 
c. Cover crops cannot be grazed or mechanically harvested. 
d. Fall seeded cover crops may be terminated: 

1. by frost, 
2. prior to production of viable seed, 
3. no more than two weeks prior to seeding the primary crop 

by chemical application, properly timed roller/crimper operations or flail mowers. 
e. Tillage as a means of killing the cover crop is not an option. 
f. N595 Pest Management cannot be used solely to terminate the cover crop. 



.-

6. Operators applying for annual cover crop funds will be prioritized by the district using a 
ranking sheet for cost-share funding. (See attached Cover Crop Pilot Practice Ranking 
Sheet). The SWCD can customize the ranking sheet for their specific needs in different areas 
by using the optional five questions developed by the district. Ranking sheet and seeding 
rates using AGRON 22 documentation must be scanned into MoSWIMS as supporting 
documentation. 

7. Cost-share is authorized: 
a. For incentive payments for operators (including landowner-operators) who implement all 

required components of the Cove.r Crop Pilot practice. 

8. Cost-share is not authorized for: 
a. Pasture or hay land 

Maximum State Cost-Share 
1. Operators paiticipating in the Cover Crop Pilot practice will be eligible for an incentive 
p~yment of l30/ag:e/yeiir. _ _ __ _ 

2. Cost-share assistance for this pilot practice shall not be approved for more than 20 acres per 
operator. Operators cannot sign up multiple landowners to elude the commission's limit. 
Operators currently or previously enrolled in a cover crop practice through a federal or other 
assistance program shall not be eligible for the pilot Cover Crop practice cost-share assistance. 

Map Requirements 
A map that displays the completed practice must be scanned and attached as "Map Document" in 
MoSWIMS prior to contract payment submission. 

Technical Responsibilities 
Technical staff has the responsibility for determining the need for the practice, for design of the 
practice based upon the minimum extent necessary, and to certify that the completed practice 
meets NRCS standards and specifications within commission policy. 

Acres Served 
Acreage planted in cover crops 

Extent Installed 
Acres 

Maintenance Life 
This practice is completed upon contract payment therefore the contract will not have a 
maintenance life. 



- - - ·-- ... -· -· -- . . -.. :-..::-~ ·- - - ··-- -- - -·--··· -· ... 

Cover Crop Pilot Practice Ranking Sheet 

Please answer the questions provided below in Section I and Section II regarding the 
production history within the field you wish to enroll in the cover crop practice and your 
future plans for implementing cover crops. Please circle the point value associated with 
each question. Provide a subtotal for Sections I and Section II (if applicable) along with a 
total for the entire sheet. Technicians are encouraged to complete this form with the 
landowner. 

Section I: Required ranking questions (possible 100 points) - Completion of an on-site visit is 
recommended. 

Points 
1. How many years have t_he acres to be enrolled been in continuous no-till? 

a. >5 years 10 
b. 3-5 years 7 
c. 1-3 years 4 
d. <1 year 1 
e. None 0 

2. How many plant species are cunently used in your cropping rotation? 
a. 3 or more species 10 
b. 2 species 5 
c. 1 species 0 

3. Are the acres being enrolled considered highly erodible land? 
a. Yes 10 
b. No 0 

4. Has pre-installed soil loss of acres to be enrol~ed been controlled to "T"? 
a. Soil loss at :ST and gully erosion controlled 10 
b. Gully erosion controlled, soil loss> T 5 
c. No control of soil loss 0 

5. Has a buffer practice been installed adjacent to the acres being enrolled? 
a. Yes - please list 10 
b. No O 

6. Will you plant short season crop varieties to allow fo1~ cover crop implementation? 
a. Yes 10 
b. No 0 

7. Have you attended any field days or workshops for soil health and/or cover crops? 
a. Yes - please list 10 
b. No 0 



8. How many years of experience do you have implementing cover crops? 
a. >5 years 0 
b. 3-5 years 3 
c. 1-Jyears 6 
d. None 10 

9. How many plant species will you have in the cover crop mix? 
a. 3 or more species 10 
b. 2 species 6 
C. 1 species 3 

10. Do you have a current soil test and recommendations? (20 acre composite soil test) 
. a. Yes · 10 

b. No 0 
Section I Subtotal: 

Section II (optional): District ranking questions (possible 50 points) - Must be consistent with 
established policy. 

Dl. 

D2. 

D3. 

D4. 

DS. 

a. 
b. 
c. 

a. 
b. 
c. 

a. 
b. 
c. 

. a. 
b. 
c. 

a. 
b. 
c. 

Points 

Section II Subtotal: 

Section I Subtotal: 
-----1 

Section II Subtotal: 
-----1 

TOTAL: 



Districts' Comments on Pilot Cover Crop Practice 
31 districts submitted comments 

e Allow livestock grazing {21} 

o Increase Acres/Lifetime Max {17} 

• Remove no till requirement for crop prior to cover crop {10} 

e Increase Incentive Amount {9} 

e Allow haying {6} 

o Allow summer and spring cover crops {6} 

• Change seeding rates {4} 

o Allow pasture/grazing system acres to be addressed {4} 

• Remove no-till requirement completely {2} 

• Have a multiple year incentive payment (2} 

• Different incentive levels for no-till amount and# of cover crop species in mix (2) 

• Apply to new construction ground 

• Eliminate use of ranking sheet 

c Add component for soil testing 

• Remove requirement on when cover crop can be terminated 





Master Fund Status Summary 

District Allocated . Obligated 

Fx=· iQt~'.: _:._ '. :B:frh:~ 1 :G~:J~'L~:::&i'.ift~1:~~1~*-~®i~~§~~~~~~~~~Hw~r~~~1®~mw 
$995,000.00 $405,408.63 40. 74% 

# 
Contracts 

20 

Contract 
Payment 

$354,436.03 

% Contract 
Payment 

35.62% 

#Contract 
Payments 

17 

Pending 

-$8,860.50 

, ;::,- :-l , , •• ·~ ~ -.:·; -.~_: .··; ... :"~·'/;, ·.·~.-.~:;: .: :·F·.'.}·i: 5Sl; .. :"'.'.:~\:~ff;<.;:J.;~_·:7J:fm1:}' ~-·:;_rl!f~-r<.;·:;;~.!J:f-:J.~"i[l~--.-;~2-.-:;~~r..:;.~-"'"' 

FY: i..oi5::,-·._;fµn_qiQ_qg_~..::._~7,;'. ~'~~LOJ~~t;~G~.r~mH~JP,Jf,~~~~~B3~RQ~~ ~[~~~i~~if:.Iif~I0{~t}~~f~~.;fA~j~·;~~~1l"~~~~~i~I~::~~I~{~I&~;fJi:i[i0!~~~~-~~·;:,~~1i.-~-;:~-~:! 
$602,200.00 $154,800.00 

.' . - :: •. · ~-. ··:-:~·_-_; ·~r:· -~; ~;·· -:·-:~·::~:-~--~.~~"!.~- -.~i~~-:,.':·-~~:~--\=·'-:~'-~'J;?-~~~;\:"~;~7i:r:~:'!7;~:;;~;;:1r..R~;:~'l!?i7:i; 
F:Y: =1M5 '/. ~.J.!pd_;~9,g~.;Jk::;c:~·.r.:q1e.~!;.~Mf~1.@~~N~:fil'.P.~~~ffe~M.~J'& 

$5,447,731.43 $3,781,832.99 

25.71% 214 

69.42% 1058 

$79,326.00 13.17% 136 -$1,800.00 

$2,657,966.31 48.79% 794 -$120,634.88 

FY.:·~~·ais;:::pi~~ili;o§~f~1~::~:~~J'i'~1fa1#.JHiR~i]f~1J!~~;.M@.l[~~~~~m~1f~i ;~~~~~~i~;~~~'.l~i]ft~j]1~4~f?i~\~~~~~~~!i1~;~f~!:B~~0~~it:.~31~!~f~~~;~~~;x~~~:~~:-~~~E;:~ 
$1,598,509.00 $1,237,048.11 77.39% 239 $817 ,178.39 51.12% 174 $0.00 

$957,458.00 $481,983.10 50.34% 521 $476,629.10 49.78% 518 $0.00 

FY: 2015 Fund··Ccid~:R: .: ... Pt.tij~~·fi·:si\~~,s~N.~itr.I¥~~~~~?bt:l~it~m~~;I'~~0!\i'.'.:~iif.!1i~~t~!~%~r~i~;:~T:~~;{'.::t~.JXiitif::':~;:~~:i'·'~;~;~:if~H~\~'.~';:·,Y_-.:~·::: 
$2,888,623.22 $1,437,581. 70 49.77% 354 $1,010,224.92 34.97% 281 $8,654.39 

FY= 20~'5 ;' ::,··fui)·ctiC?C!~~R~:·;· . .;;e.,~~f~:~t:~~&~~~$»~~~±:~£.f!i~~1fu~1~1~m~~*~i?d§E~~W-%~I~~B~~i:llii~ifrfl~;a;:i}:~:,~2';~;1A·;~··~I\:;~;:fo~U:·;~~;Di:,ik;'.::?·~;:\:r\'.'·.·. ·: 
$22,662,798.68 $19,020,112.53 83.93% 3201 $15,061,749.23 66.46% 2598 -$365,173.67 

FY:·i!it~;\: k.4:H~:·~(±~~.~.fg;;~~t:·~t§i~{E.t;~w.¥Jl~W.m~~~&~"i~~1~f~~1;1IE~iB~~~Tu~~~im1z~:e£~~t~t:~~~?iigg~~~~~7-1~{~~~r.fiE~:%~.J.~1;:{2zt(?~;:~;}J.f;;s;::.;€·ffc·;~;6)l:s;:E~\1:-_::i·-1 
$1,907,244.75 $969,556.67 50.84% 305 $709,821.74 37.22% 229 -$7,264.24 

Subtotal for R $37,059,565.08 $27,488,323.73 74.17% 5912 $21,167 ,331. 72 57.12% 4747 -$495,078.90 

FY: 2015 . Furia . to.deis~ ,~L1~~'9j~~t.i~!?~i~i~~hl¥-~i~\~~~~Gi~i}~~7i:T~~~t:1~l~Jl~l.{~J~~i?~~1#;sE~ISlB~t'.r~t ,~':· ·· 
$23,100.00 $2,400.00 10.39% 8 $2,400.00 10.39% 8 $0.00 

FY:2015 ·.·:·~h~~ ~¢~~~~~ ~; ·j-~~:··r;:_:~~:· .:,,·~~~-:~~~~ 
$10,109.90 $10,109.90 100.00% 1 $10,109.90 100.00% 1 $0.00 

IT:20i5 F~d~~~~ :~~~~~~~~:·--~~f 0 
06/09/2015 7:34:43AM Page I of4 ~ 



Master Fund Status Summary 

District Allocated Obligated 
$18,600.70 $18,600.70 

%Obligated 
100.00% 

# 
Contract 

1 

FY: 2 01 s Fu~Ci - cod~·:si\i : .\' ::Ji~6}~-~~':s·r,i!)·~3p!f,.~¢~~:€!~~~~!&~l~f&i%££lliW.¥~\M~P.E~\~wk.·w~'.LV 
$45,383.00 $38,616.59 85.09% 9 

Contract 
Payment 

$18,600.70 

$38,616.59 

% Contract # Contract 
Payment Pnyments 

100.00% 1 

4··.··. ,:• 

85.09% 9 

Pending 
$0.00 

$0.00 

FY: 2015 ·· Fundb~~e:sN.: .: iifri?J~ci-;$Nii94tQ'.~.¥fu.J1d~~i!<fr}t:~2iif2{~F?iiT~:1_;!J:'1:t~~iigJ)f.~?i~itn$?'~, ~;}~·,\:~;~@V'i({::·.:,. : ·.>/\:·.·cf?:_ :;::r: ;< .. :;·.· .· ·. · · ···•·· .. ... :,. · 
$4,900.00 so.oo 0.00% 1 I $0.oo 0.00% 0 $3,091.30 

FY: 2015· . F,.µnd .·c9~~:s&: ··.~ j~f;6j~~t~$.No~:si~,~i~~i¥:~'f~::.citt~~~~~~;;1~r:~~~~riii!}id~::~'~~~~~gf;;r'.1ffm:;~:~~~fi~ifas~lrr7:NI.ffri:f+·::i};!'.('.~%~:.;::;~~>>,.:' ,· : .. :{.:,~~ '. :, ,.:.Yi"r/\'.:;<~L 
$44,714.oo $11,051.00 24.71 % 13 I s11,05i.oo 24.71 % 13 $0.00 

FY: 2 015 .. · • Fu~·g_-, c::q~e·::sN· :· :· \I>:r~J .~'.~i is.Nob'.6.:WB.RoW.P.~&:f$,itB:~w~0~I-JJ0/f;~;~~!i~Wif:~if.;~~~!i~;~~~~~;;~1f t~~'..!r1S~:~f:~:f.i'!G.fi/21i;h>F::~lirff ;~gi;{;i::;:~.:;;}::;f;i/iJ~;;;,:;: ~~··:/F?;\;~:-L·: :~i:)::>}:U ,:,;'\ .. 
$44,655.00 $13,808.68 30.92% 7 j $6,801.15 15.23% 5 $0.00 

FY= ·.2 o ~5 .·, : Jf J:nci':c¢ ~¢·;:s&'. ::.;;::\~t:J1~·~tti .~&oi~~~tW.~m~1E:&.fil(f&5~gi~N.1$i.l~1!i[~fil1~~1m~Y.r~f~~?X.11J~jJ~;~~%Jf:{1;ti~£~ ;~if i';t1F/P):IG;~¥d,:lJF%;;\s;1~;i;'.!Wfl.if fr:~i;;:J~YT·~~::EVi,· : :j~ ;:~:y;:;.;H;'.;;p: ~::~:. ·: 
$11,450.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2015 ~~n~~~~~N0 ~~~~~~~~~~~~:~c~~~~~J~~~~r~ : 
$51,732.00 $51,584.36 99.71 % 8 I $36,672.36 70.89% 8 -$14,912.00 

FY: 2015 Funct ·.code:.SN· ·~· Prof¢cf:$Nt9o(~bi::£K:Sfolii~i$k£~i~%!lt"~¢.8;(.fiN~B.~~i~i~i;{:~;{'.~(~'.f;~:f;::,W.- ' ;~· 
$30,700.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

FY: 2015 Fund: Cod ~~SN ... :·.],> f()j .~~t: $N.f.iii(}±"i;{qp:K$.B:ji{w~ff'.2}~~;;~'.~;~~\t~;i:;i{:~s~.i·:~~!.f!~T;~r;~;,~x,!;'tii~lI'.:i~@!l~9:?j/: ',·, ~·:~; .. ~. . .•.. ·,.: .· .•• ::_.' :;·: ·i : .. ., · .. . · 

S65,ooo.oo $65,ooo.oo 100.00% 6 I $65,ooo.oo 100.00% G S0.00 

FY:201s . Tun~cod~~~ ~ ~~~J~;~~i~d~~~~~~~~~G~~8S0Gii0i~~00V& .. ;~ ~ 
$55,432.00 $44,196.50 79.73% 6 $44,196.50 79.73% G $0.00 

FY: 2015 · · FuncU:oc1e:SN: .. ,:Pt:cij e.tt:~Nt6~~XtiQ;\Y~·~/~ji~~BMfA:J~g$}1J~\£~~¥~i~~~'.g.~'.£~)F:J'.i~f~;}'.;)~F; ;_;;~:L!t\!l}.'\.'(!"Yi).L_~;+JT.~<.)L:;~~'.(:}~\·:: •. ·.: i 
s13,74o.oo s12,947.o4 11.56% 3 I s12,947.o4 11.56% 3 so.oo 

FY: 2.015 Fuhct ·coct.e:sN ·• <i>;6ie~fis~%~~~. 9·r;;.~~i.~l~.<?#i}~~~f<:'D~{~~:.:'j : 'j}/::<i:WHi)~~:;t{?{;;{/;.;;;6PE~".·:-:~C
1

'· ·· 

06/09i2015 7:34:43AM Page 2 of4 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Payment Pa:yment Payments Pending 

$55,000.00 $52,676.87 95.78% 15 $46,064.66 83.75% 13 $0.00 

Subtotal for SN I $534,516.60 $320,991.64 60.05% 78 $292,459.90 54.71% 73 -$11,820.70 

06/09/201 s 7:34:43AM Page 3 of4 



Master Fund Status Summary 

Master Fund Status Summary (2015) 

Subtotal for R I $37,059,565.08 $27,488,323.73 74.17% 

Subtotal for SN I $534,516.60 $320,991.64 60.05% 

Report Totals I $37,594,081.68 $27,809,315.37 73.97% 

06/09/2015 7:34:43AM · 

5912 I $21,167,331.72 57.12% 4747 -$495,078.90 
I 

78 I $292,459.90 54.71 % 73 ~$11;82.0. 70 
;,. 

-
5990 $21,459,791.62 57.08% 4820 !-./.;:~s5o6;?99. :~o · 

Page 4 of 4 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 11, 2015 

D.-5 
Page 5 

include the printer/scanner/copier that each district received. She stated the total 
appropriation authority was $49 million for FYI 5 and as of February 1, 2015, $19 
million bad been spent. 

Next, Ms. Weckenborg updated the Commission on the FY16 Governor's 
Recommended Budget. She stated it was basically the same as proposed in the 
previous year with cost-share at $31 million appropriation authority, district 
operations at $12 million, program administration at $3 million, SALT at 
$200,000, Other at $569,297, Federal Demo and Tech at $1 million, Monitoring 
and Conservation at $650,000 and Research at $400,000_ 

6. Plan for the Future Program Delivery and Operations Subcommittee 
Colette Weckenborg presented a report on the Plan for the Future Program 
Delivery and Operations Subcommittee. She stated the final Plan for the Future 
document is expected to be completed at the end of December 2015 . She 
presented some recommendations from the subcommittee. One of the items 
discussed was district employee progression. The goal is to recruit and retain 
employees and be able to provide an opportunity for job progression and a better 
benefit package and salary. The job progression will follow a five year plan. All 
district employees will be classified as a District Specialist (DS) and be able to 
progress from levels I-IV . Ms. Weckenborg stated the subcommittee developed 
two plans, one for employees working in a single district and one for a shared 
employee between two or more districts. The following is the scenario for m1 

employee working in a single district. A newly hired employee will start as a DS I 
and be hired at a base salary of up to $13 .13 per hour at the board of supervisors 
discretion. After one year of service and the completion of the conservation 
planner modules 1-8, the employee can progress to a DS II and the state stipend 
will increase by $1.00 per hour. To move from a DS II to a: DS III the employee 
will need another year of service and complete the District Specialist 
Certification, and the state stipend will increase by $1.00 per hour. After an 
additional three years, the employee will eligible for the DS IV upon completing 
two out of three specialties. The specialties are: 1. Conservation Planner Module 
9; 2. Nutrient Tracking Tool (NTT); 3. Grazing Certification, Nutrient 
Certification or pertinent engineering job approval authority from NRCS. The 
state stipend wiJl increase by $2.00 per hour. Ms. Weckenborg stated that current 
district staff would be grandfathered in at their existing stipend but will h0ve the 
ability to follow the progression to increase their training and stipend. Next, Ms. 
Weckenborg covered the same schematic for shared districts. She stated that the 
subcommittee felt that a base salary for a newly hired DS I was sufficient, but 
af:ter a six month probationary period, if decided by the board of supervisors, the 
state stipend could be increased by $1 .00 per hour. She 1)ointed out that the rest of 
the progression was the same as the example for an employee working in a single 
district, with increments between steps being the same. 

Ms . Weckenborg stated that the subcommittee realized that to have better pay for 
the district employees, something else had to give. She stated the subcommittee 
felt that retirement and health insurance benefits needed to be increased. The 
subcommittee also looked at what areas they thought could be partially decreased 



MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 11, 2015 
Page 6 

-the intern program, number of district employees, and the Administrative Grant 
Fund. In response, the subcommittee voted starting July 2015 (FY 16) to increase 
the retirement benefit from 5 percent to 7 percent for all district employees from 
state funds. The subcommittee thought the Administrative Grant Fund could 
decrease, but that Info/Ed Fund needed to be increased. The subcommittee 
proposed combining the two grant funds and decreasing the total by $500 per 
district to help offset the cost for increasing retirement. She stated this would 
begin in July 2015 for FY 16 with the District Specialist progression to begin on 
January 1, 2016. 

Commissioners Vandiver and Lance stated they were impressed with the work 
that the subcommittee has done on a hare:! issue. They looked at the issues not just 
for the members on the subcommittee, but for all the district employees. 

____________ C.::....o:;-;l~le'-:e....::n~M=-e~r~e~d~i t~h:--"i=n~fon_i1J;_cLthe_Commission-that-in-thg_spi:ing,-the-s1:1beonunittees 
will develop webinars that show how and why the decisions were made. 

After some discussion, Charles Ausfahl suggested that the Administration/Info Ed 
Funds issue be tabled until the next meeting. It was the.consensus of the 
Commission to table this issue. 

H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to increase retirement benefit from 5 percent to 7 
percent. Jeff Lance seconded the motion. When asked by the Chair, Charles 
Ausfahl, H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor of the 
motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

I-I. Ralph Gaw made a motion to adopt the linear progression of specialists within 
the districts and adopt the criteria for each of the promotions, as well as the 
salaries therein set forth. Charles Ausfahl seconded the motion. When polled, 
Charles Ausfahl , H. Ralph Gaw, Jeff Lance and Gary Vandiver voted in favor of 
the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

7. University of Missouri-Using Missouri Data to Understand Capabilities of 
the APEX Model to Estimate Nutrients and Sediment in Runoff 
Dr. Claire Baffaut presented an update on using Missouri data to understand 
capabilities of the Agricultural Policy Environmental Extender (APEX) Model to 
estimate nutrient and sediment loads in runoff She informed the Commission that 
she has been working with Dr. John Lory and Dr. Anomaa Senaviratne from the 
University of Missouri on this project. She felt their group has expertise that is 
beneficial in responding to challenges that exist in Missouri in documenting the 
effectiveness of conservation practices on the ground, which is necessary for 
prioritization and accountability of the practices. She pointed out that the 
assessment of conservation programs has two elements - environmental models 
and economic assessment. Environmental models expand the value of monitoring 
data. The Nutrient Tracking Tool (NTT) uses field/farm up to a small \Valershed 
scale and has the capability to simulate physical processes that takes place on the 
land. lt can simulate field operations and conservation practices. !Vis. Baffm+t 
pointed out that APEX vvas at the core of NTT which the SWCP has provided 



Sullivan County Soil and Water Conservation District 
23487 Eclipse Drive 

Milan,Mo.63556 E1a 

SWCD Commission, 
Program Office 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, Mo. 65102 

Dear Commissioners: 

660-265-3440 Ext. 3 

April 14, 2015 

We the Sullivan County Soil & Water Conservation District Board would like to 
appoint Steve Hodge to complete the term of Lloyd Nichols a member, due to his move 
to Arkansas. 

Sincerely, 1~/i 
() " J. f l uf -tT4/l.(tVJ-t;/ /0/J_µ 

Jim 1-:loselton . 
Sullivan County Soil & Water Conservation District Board 

Jim Haselton 
Chairman 

Dennis Foster 
Vice Chairman 

Valerie Tate 
Secretary 

Brad Ayers 
Treasurer 

Lloyd Nichols 
Member 



VERIFICATION OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILrrv 

To qualify for office, according to Missouri's Code of State Regulations. 
IO CSR 70-2.020, Conduct of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall: 

1) Be a land representative as defined by "The owner, or representative authorized by power or 
attorney, of any form lying within the soil and water conservation district (SWCD): provided. 

however, that any land representative must be a taxpayer of the county within which the SWCD 
is located," and 

2) Be a resident taxpaying citizen within that S\VCD for tvvo (2) years preceding the appointment 
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and 

3) Be a cooperator of the S\VCD defined as «A person who is actively involved in farming and 
practices conservation activities related to agriculture:' and 

4) Reside in or m:vn a farm lying in the same territory where the board position is vacani. 

----------------------

The undersigned ce1ti fy that the candidate meets all of the above st~1ted eligibility requirements 
to serve as a supervisor for the __ Su._\_\:.L'\J..lLo ~\v::i..:h .. 

1 
Soil and Water Conservation District. 

Chairperson (or aeting) signature: .~?Ut-t~ ~,ti. Dale: ~j)~~· 
Candidate signature: .A~.Yi.v.-.J 1ht_"?"~ Date: _I{ If~)._~_ 

IX-15 Oli26/2 01 l 



=t 
.......... \ 

·· -· ··--····--·· ·-· .. ! .. 
·····--------·-·· ·rl·-····· 

11 
! j° 
; I 
. ! 

eC 
':/ 

( / ·' . t) (L--V" . 

, 5-~c~~f.-_ -e_ - ~~: -. _- _ ·-. · . .. ~ __ -__ .· ___ · ..... --.. .. - --------~ .. --... -... .. -.. ___ _ :;. --- - ---- --- ~~K -~~~xi~~ 
l~~ ,,:r {~ 

. ·-·· ·· -·:·1 . ····· ·-· · ···--· ----·· ········ .... -···-······--···· ··········-· ··-- .... ··-····--· ······-·········- ··---· ··--·--·-·-------···-··-··---.. ----.. --.. ·--·---··-- -·-·-- ·- - -· ······-- .. - ·---.. ···- ... -,,_ .. ·----......... . 

.... .... .. .. -.. . i , ........... _ ..................... ··-·-.. -............. •" --·-· ..................... --·-·····-·--·-.. ·---·· .. ______ ,, ____ ,., .... _. __ ,_ ---·-·•"""-··--·-···-··-.. ·-·-·-.. ·-····-·· ...................... ____ ................. -....... ............ _ ... . 
! i 

-~~-~= ~-- --=-~-- : '. [~---= ~---__ :~--~-~-·~ .. -:~-~---.. = ··· -=··-~- . -: ---~-~ --~~-.. ----~----·~-... --~~: ~-~--_· -~ :~--- _- -------~~:~---- :-. .----..:-.-- . -~ -. -- __ -· __ -: :-~ _ :- --- ~ --.. -... -. _- --_- -·-
............. ~ .......... ........ 11 .... _.. . .. ................. .._. .. .............. .. ..... _. ..................... .. ... -- .............. . ..... - ,, __ ................. _ ......... -.... .......... -...................... _ .................... ........ -..... -....... -..... -·-........ -... ... ... ..... _ - ·-••" . ....... .. 

,, 
-·-- ·-· · -·---.................. I 1----.. - ....... ... · · ... .... ........ .. .. ..... · -....... --.. ........... · .. --.. --.. --.. --.. _ .. ---· ........ ... -· ... -.............. ..... ·-·--.......... ---__ .. __ .... .... · ..... -· -.. -----... ...... _ .. ___ . - ·--·-................. ---- ---- ... ..................... .. 

·---.--......... ................... Ti .. .......... ............................ -.................. - ................ - .. - ..... ·-··---·-.. ------ .... -----· ....... -.... -- ·--·---·--.. -.. -·------·---· ---·--... _ ... .. ........ _ .... .. . -.. 

--- --~------1 ·1-------------------------------------"··-·-----.. -·--.. -----.- .... --------.----·---.. -·---·-····-------·--------·----·-------.. -··-·-·-··-""" '-'" ..... .. .. 
- --------·----r - -·----- - ----·-·--------- -------------------------- ------------- ---- ----·--··--------· .. ········-··-··-· ---··--·--··--------- ------- -----·-··-- ·-· -- - · -···- -

: ; 
; i . -----:-_,,, ______ ;· j ""·-----·-·- ............ _ ... - .... -. _ .. _______ _,----·- ·--.-----·- .. "··-·----,-----.-.... ---................ _______ ,, __ ...... -···---.. ·--·-·-....... ·---···---- ........... - ... - ---·- --· ....... _ .. --- ........ ............. . . 

.. _ _ _____ _JJ ____________________________________________ , _____ ____ .... ____________________________ ,_, _____________ ·-·----- --·--··--------------------·-·---··-----
i ! 
\ ! 

----·--- ···---·-· .. -··-·-;-~---···-----··--·--····-··· ···--·------··-·-·-- ·· -·-- .. -·-··------·-··----- ----··--·------·-·--··---- ···---·---···------ ·-···-···--·- - -· -·--·---·-·--·· ·----~--····- ··--··-·----··--·--··-·--·--··-
i i 

==-====-: 1==~~==:==~~===-=--=:==-=,====-~-=-==~=======--= 
-·- ·----·-·----r·i ·-·---··-·--···-- ·--··-··-------·-·----- · --------- --- -----·---·---·----------------· ·-----.. ·------ ---··-·-·-·------- - --- - --------·--··---- -----·- - - · - --- - ·· 

··-··-·--···---·--------· ...... _. .. ;---··---------· . ·--·-· ·---------··-··----··--··----··········-·· ...... - ----- ----·----------- ·-·----·· ·-- -----·---~---·--·-·---· ---· ·-- ·-----------· .. -... ······------- .. ··-···•·""' ____ ------·----- .. -·-· ... ·------··-·--- --- ----- ------. ·····• . ---· 
: l 

ii 
............................. _LL ................ - - ........ ....... _ ............ ................................. ... ---................ ·- --·-·--...... .. . ---· ......................... ____ ............ ------.. -.... ....... ----· ....... -·-.. - .......... . -·· ···--- .................... .. . ......... .. 

ll 
i i . . .. ·---·-·······-· ···- - ·--... ... , . . .. ------.- ............. ----........ ·- . . ·-··--···--· .. ·-. -~. -----··---- .. --- ·- -···--···-· .. -- -·-··· ................... ·-· . -------···•"" ... _ .. ---.. -· _____ .. _ ··--- ·--·- ·-·---· - ··- ·---- ··-- ________ _. - .. -·-·-··. ·-· ..... ... ··· -· .. . . . , 
. ! 





Carter County Soil & Water Conservation District 
PO Box 154 3 E Cleveland, Ste. A 

Ellsinore, MO 63937 
Phone: 573-322-0233 

Wednesday, May 20, 2015 

To whom it may concern: 

E 1b 

The Carter County Board of Supervisors would like Mr. Allen Gibbs to fill the vacancy that Mr 
Wayne Gibbs has left. This position is for area 4 in our district. 

Si~ 
Carter County sop & Water.Conservation District Board of Supen1isors 

j(~v~'-" ~d-e.r; er""' . 
\$ o cv-d Gere....-{ 17-/'j 



VERIFICATION OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILITY 

To qualify for office, according to Missouri's Code of State Regulations, 
10 CSR 70-2.020, Conduct of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall: 

1) Be a land representative as defined by "The owner, or representative authorized by power of 
attorney, of any farm lying within the soil and water conservation district (SWCD); provided, 

however, that any land representative must be a taxpayer of the county within which the SWCD 
is located," and 

2) Be a resident taxpaying citizen within that SWCD for two (2) years preceding the appointment 
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and 

3) Be a cooperator of the SWCD defined as "A person who is actively involved in farming an9 
practices conservation activities related to agriculture," and 

4) Reside in or own a farm lying in the same territory \Vhere the board position is vacant. 

The undersigned certify that the candidate meets all of the above stated eligibility requirements 
to serve as a supervisor for the Carter County Soil and Water Conservation District. 

V Chairperson (or acting) Signature: 

Candidate Signature: 

IX- 15 05101/20 I I 



§'·- I Z - IS- · 

~1 f(lt.-~!tl1tiA1'T;-WSF V / ·/tJlo>f/L 1<:'f?N~ (?<tvit!!A( 

5 t(/,!f-1//e_c;;;,6'bs vv,J h -Jz; Ak~,,_,/(;1-

11/t, 1 £ .e Ji t #14-f--, c5--.-- i tf4m L -1-tLe__@\~ 
C$t41i( ~/,,L /iV#e;;U ,---:/3~, 

1 

C ,-J-Je(J_ f ;:_,,, c ; 4/"71-e-c!1rr-Je7 . 





r A~ c~ : 
v~ rn ~· 

Rt 72 Box 29241lton, MO 65606 (417- 778-7561 Ext 3) 

Soil and Water Conservation Prag am 
POBox176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 

E 1c 

May 18, 2015 

Dear Mr. Boschert, 

The Oregon County Soil and Water~Conservation District board of supervisors accepted 
the Board member resignation fro Jerry Strain on April 28, 2015 at the April monthly 

bo~rd m_eeting. The board _and st1 have asked Kent Newman to fill the vacant term 
Which Wiii be on the ballot Jn Janury 2018. . 

Attached to this letter is the resig~tion letter from Mr. Strain, as well as the eligibility 

form signed by Mr. Newman and\ e board. 

We are requesting the Soil and W4ter Commission to approve our request for Kent 
Newman to fill the board vacancy bf Jerry Strain. 

If you have any questions, please) el free to contact our office at 417-778-7561Ext101. 

Thank you, 

/~/7~ 
Oregon Cou ~ty SWCD 
Board of Supervisors 

·--



Dear Oregon County Soil and Water Con ervation District, 

I, Jerry Strain, submit my letter of resignafion as Oregon County SWCD Board Member due to health 

reasons. My resignation will go into effe ·ton April 28, 2015. 

1.\ . -:J't .1 \ s 
Date 



VERIFICA TIO\ OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILITY 

To qualify for office, accoJding to Missouri's Code of State Regulations, 
10 CSR 70-2.020, Condu t of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall: 

I) Be a land representative as define by "The owner, or representative authorized by power of 
attorney, of any fann lying within thrsoil and water conservation district (SWCD); provided, · 

however, that any land representative rnst be a taxpayer of the county within which the SWCD 
is located," and 

2) Be a resident taxpaying citizen with n that S\VCD for two (2) years preceding the appointment 
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and 

3) Be a cooperator of the SWCD defihed as "A person who is actively involved in farming and 
practices conservatiJn activities related to agriculture," and 

4) Reside in or own a farm lying il the same territory where the board position is vacant. 

I 
The undersigned certify that the candi~ate meets all of the above stated eligibility requirements 
to serve as a supervisor for the CJ\e__.tl 0.L r..(}0,ct-:L Soil and Water Conservation District. 

j) J 

Chairperson (or acting) signature: ,{7 ~ h ~ 
. ~I 
Candidate signature: ~ ----r-c.... - -

/ 

Date: ,5'~/£5,--;:;-

Date: s-- / ;l r I 5 

IX-I 5 01/2612011 





MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
December 18, 2014 

E2 
Page 7 

6. Increase Cost-Share Well Drilling Component in Southeast Missouri 
Jim Boschert presented the request from Southeast Missouri districts to increase 
the cost-share for the well drilling component. I-le reminded the Commission that 
this issue was initially presented in June 2014 and at that time it was determined 
that additioi1al information was needed from Missouri Geological Survey (MGS) 
Program. This issue was presented again to the Commission in August 2014 and 
at that meeting the Commission heard from Ripley SWCD and Kyle Rollins from 
MGS on the difficulty of drilling wells in the southeastern part of the state. He 
informed the Commission that the program office asked the districts to provide 
the cost of the well drilling component for FY13 and FY14 including practices 
installed during the Drought Assistance Program. The districts were asked to 
provide the contract number, drilling cost per foot, well certification fee, set-up 
fee and the total landowner cost. Mr. Boschert informed the Commission that 13 
of the 15 districts responded with a total of255 contracts that included the well 
drilling component. He stated that according to the information submitted, the 
drilling cost per foot ranged from $7 .00 to $24.00 and the average cost per foot 
was $10 .25. Mr. Boschert informed the Commission that the average cost-share 
received for contracts that included the well drilling component ranged from 60 to 
92 percent of the total cost of the practice. He stated that since the droughtthe 15 
districts supporting this request have ~pproved 30 contracts with the well drilling 
component. 

Mr. Boschert stated that in FY14, eight districts entered information into the 
NRCS datqbase for the well drilling cost for a total of 16 data entry information 
points. He stated that with the information entered by the eight districts, the well 
drilling component cost was determined for the entire state. 

Kenny Lovelace stated he had received information from Oregon SWCD letting 
them know why the districts were not present for this meeting. Mike Kelly, 
MASWCD Area 8 Director, pointed out that of the eight districts that entered 
information none were from the southeastern part of the state. He also pointed out 
that he thought that some of the cost of the drilling included the cost for the 
casing. 

After some discussion, the Commission decided to table the issue pending more 
information. 

7. Lclvis Soil and Water Conservation District - DWP-1 Erosion Control 
Structure: Cost-Share Maintenance Violation 
Jim Boschert presented the request from Lewis SWCD on a DWP-I Erosion 
Control Structure that had a maintenance violation. He stated that Lewis SWCD 
was requesting assistance in collecting repayment of $4,333.46 of cost-share 
funds fi·om Marvin Klingele for the DWP-1 maintenance violation. He provided 
some background information on this contract. It was approved by the board on 
June 6, 2009, and it was paid on July 15, 2009, in the amount of $7,886.29. He 
pointed out that it has a maintenance life of I 0 years. 





Cape Girardeau County 
Soil and Water 
Conservation District 

Mr. Jim Boschert 
Soil & Water Conservation Program 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

480 W. Jackson Trails 
Jackson, MO 63755 
(573) 243-1467 EXT 3 

April 7, 2015 

RE: Sally Ruesler Contract# SOE 012-15-0010 and SGE 012-15-0011 

Dear Mr. Boschert: 

E3 

The Cape Girardeau County Soil and Water Conservation District Board is requesting an 
allowance for reconstruction assistance for the N410 and DSL-11 contracts listed above due to a 
significant storm event that occ.urred on March 25, 2015. This storm event exceeded the design 
capacity for the structure and v.'.ashed the fill away over the drop pipe and the adjoining critical 
area. Luckily the pipe did not wash away, just the fill covering the pipe. 

The reconstruction assistance that we are requesting is for the cost share components 
SIDRAINSTR 0-8FT for 48 fe~t at $732.96; CRITICAL AREA SEEDNG for 0.3AC at $105.21; · 
and GRADING/SHAP HEA V'( for 0.2AC at 346.50. The total reconstruction assistance being 
requested is $1184.67. 

The original contract SGE 012-:15-0010 for the N410 Drop Pipe was approved on July 31,2014 
and was approved for payment 

1

on October 1, 2014. The original contract SGE 012-15-0011 for 
the DSL-11 Permanent Vegetative Cover-Critical Area was approved on July 31, 2014 and was 
approved for payment on October 1, 2014. 

i 

We appreciate your consideration in this matter and appreciate any help that you may give in 
helping our landowner rebuild and maintain her structures. 

Respectfully, d 
~ \jiV"'~ 
Anthony Ohmes 
Cape Girardeau County SWCD 



-- - ------------ -----------



Jeremiah ~Z Gay) Nixon, Governor • Sara Parker Pauley, Dirccmr 

CERTIFIED MAIL #7013 2250 0002 2840 8077 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Travis Barnes 
1736 Three Rivers Road 
Farmington, MO 63640 

Dear Mr. Barnes: 

E4 

On March 3, 2015, a letter from the Department of Natural Resources, Soil and Water Conservation 
Program, allowing you additional time to repair the practice and bring the cost-share contracts, SGE 
083-11-0004, SGE 083-11-0005 and SGE 083-11-0006, back into compliance was mailed to your 
home address. The three contracts were for DSL-01 Permanent Vegetative Cover Establislunent. 

The March 3rd letter stated the reseeding of these contracts needed to be completed by May 15, 2015. 
Staff from the Ste. Genevieve Soil and Water Conservation District and Soil and Water Conservation 
Program conducted a site visit on May 19, 2015. During their visit they noticed that although 
additional work had been done on the contracts, they have not been brought back into compliance. 
Since the, contra.y_t~ . have not been brought back into compliance the Soil and Water Conservation 
Program will pi·hceed with taking this matter to the Soil and Water Districts Commission at their next 
meeting for their consideration to refer this matter to the Missouri Attorney General's Office for 
recovery of funds. The next meeting of Soil and Water Districts Commission will be June 17, 2015, at 
the Missouri University's Fisher Delta Research Center, 147 State Highway T, Portageville, Missouri . 

Please contact Mr. Jim Boschert at the Department of Natural Resources, Soil and Water Conservation 
Program, P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 or by ph01ie at (573) 522-3320 if you have 
any questions or plan to attend the meeting. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

Colleen Meredith 
Director 

CM:jbd 

c: Ste. Genevieve Soil and Water Conservq.tion District 
tJ 

lk cydc1l l':ltltr 



m Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. 

• Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. 

m Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 
or on the front if space permits. 

1. Article Addressed to: 

MR TRAVIS BARNES 
1736 THREE RIVERS,.ROAD 
FARMINGTON MO 63640 

;:'I-. 

--~.~·- ~-----=--- -

D Agent . 
D Addressee ' 

C. Date of DJlivery : t? "\ ~1s . 
D. ls delivery address different from iten'i·1? D Yes 

If YES, enter delivery address below: D No 

b.~Ct.\\/E.D 

JUN G B ZU15 
3. Service Type 

)!';certified Mail D Express Mail 
D Registered D Return Receipt for Merchandise ' 

- - O Insured MaiJ- 0 0.0.D. 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) D Yes 

2. Article Number· 
(Transfer from service fabeQ 

7013 2250 0002 2840 8077 

. PS Form 3811, February 2004 Domestic Return Receipt 102595·02·M·1540 : 



Mr. Travis Barnes 
1736 Three Rivers Road 
Farmington, MO 63640 

Dear Mr. Barnes: 

This letter is a follow-up to a phone conversation that you had with Mr. Jim Bosche1i from my 
staff on January 15, 2015, regarding a maintenance violation on Soil and Water Conservation 
Program (SWCP) Cost-Share contract numbers SGE083-1 l-0004, SGE083-11-0005 and 
SGE083-11-0006. These three contracts were for DSL-1 Permanent Vegetative Cover 
Establishment. 

Per your conversation on January 15, 2015, it has been decided to allow you an opportunity to 
repair the practices and bring the contracts back into compliance. You must apply the same seed 
as you originally discussed with the Ste. Genevieve County Soil and Water Conservation District 
(SWCD). The reseeding of these contracts must be completed by May 15, 2015. Once you have 
brought these contracts back into compliance you will need to contact the Ste. Genevieve SWCD 
so they can verify that the contracts are in compliance. 

If you fail to bring the practices into compliarice by May 15; 2015, the SWCP will proceed with 
taking this matter to the Soil and Water Districts Commission for their consideration to refer this 
matter to the Missouri Attorney General's Office for recovery of funds. 

Should you have any questions on this matter please contact Mr. Jim Boschert at the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources, Soil and Water Conservation Program, P.O. Box 176, 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 or by phone at 573-522-3320. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 
, - · 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

Colleen Meredith 
Director 

CM:jbd 

c: Ste. Genevieve SWCD 

•• 0 ~ 

"" (h"t'.H'h-tl l ':ll ll'r 



-· -- ---- ----------- -----



January 2, 2015 

CERTIFIED MAIL# 7099 3220 0009 3706 8179 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Travis Barnes 
1736 Three Rivers Rd 
Farmington, MO 63640 

Dear Mr. Barnes: 

The Soil and Water Conservation Program has received a letter from the Ste. Genevieve County 
Soil and Water Conservation District requesting assistance in pursuing repayment of cost-share 
funds for three DSL-1 Permanent Vegetative Cover Establishment practices, contract numbers 
SGE083-11-0004, SGE083..:l 1-0005 and SGE083-1 l-0006 which were approved by the board on 
October 27, 2010 and payment made on November 4, 2011. 

In letters from the Ste. Genevieve Soil and Water Conservation District Board of Supervisors 
dated September 10, 2014 and October 15, 2014 you were informed ofthe maintenance violation 
on the contracts. To correct the violation of the maintenance agreement, you were given the 
opportunity to repair the practices and bring the contracts back into compliance or repay a . 
prorated amount of the cost-share funds received. The district had given an original deadline of 
October 15, 2014. 

The district board provided adequate time from the date of the first letter to correct the 
maintenance violations or make payment of a prorated amount of $1,060.64 for the three 
contracts listed above. To date the payment has not been received nor has the district board heard 
from you or a representative regarding the status of this payment or reseeding. 

In accordance with the Missouri Code of State Regulations 10 CSR70-5.060, repayment is 
requested within 30 days ofreceipt of this letter in the amount of$1,060.64. The check or money 
order should be made payable to DNR/Soil and Water Conservation Program which can be 
delivered to the Ste. Genevieve Soil and Water Conservation District office or mailed to: 

Department of Natural Resources 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0176 

i) 
Hn-~clc tl i'::1a•r 



Mr. Travis Barnes 
January 2, 2015 
Page Two 

If you feel that a review of this demand for repayment needs to be completed by the Soil and 
Water Districts Commission, your appeal must be received in writing to the address above within 
30 days of receipt of this letter. If you fail to make repayment, this matter will be placed before 
the Soil and Water Districts Commission at their next meeting, which is tentatively scheduled for 
February 11, 2015, for consideration ofreferral to the Missouri Attorney General's Office for 
recovery of these funds. 

Should you have any questions on this matter please contact Jim Boschert of my staff at the Soil 
and Water Conservation Program PO Box 176, Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 or by phone at 
573-751-4932. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

Colleen Meredith, 
Program Director 

JB :tm 

c. Ste. Genevieve SWCD 

The Year of Water: Promoting, Protecting and Enjoying our Natural Resources. Learn 
more at dnr. mo. g-ov. 

-· 
.·•···· 



,.,,. .. , .. 
~· D · 

~' 

-'· 

ru Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. 

A. Received by (Please Print Clearly) B. Date of Delivery . 

!L-1 (.::" l V I tAf J)All!v<..d .C :' · 1' ·· /:~ · ' 
m Print your name and address on the reverse 

so that we can return the card to you. 
C. "Signature . 

D Agent 
D Addressee ! 

!il Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 
or on the front if space permits. 

1 . Article Addressed to: 
D. Is delive~ address different from item 1? D Yes 

D No If YES, enter delivery address below: 

RECEIVED 
Mr. Travis Barnes .JAN 1 2 Z015 

3. Service Type 1736 mee Rivers Road 
Farmington MO 63640 [!;'] Certified Mail 

D Registered 
D Insured Mail 

D Express Mail , 
D Return Receipt for Merchandise ' 
0 C.0 .D. 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 

2. Article Number (Copy from service label) 

/ 0 9 '1 3 ·J..a. cl a oo er 3 / 0 &, ?c I 7 q 
PS Form 3811 , July 1999 Domestic Return Receipt 

..D 
Cl 
~ 
rn 
IT""' 
Cl 
Cl 
Cl 

Cl 
ru 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

Restricted Delivery Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

Total Postage /!, Fees 

$ 

'" ,p 

Postmark 
Here 

g:: rN~a-m_e_(=P~/e-a-se-P=r~ln~t~C~/e-a~rl~y)~(=To~be-co-n-1p~/e~t-eo~. b~y-n-1-ai~le-r)~-------
_'('Q_r_ ___ ]'_)"'."_c.!..J/__i __ ;'? _____ ~g,._f__Y] __ 4;_,S _________________________________________ _ 

IT""' street, Apt. No.; or PO Box No. 

g_; __ _l_?.._~-~- - ----l_hr:.~--~----.B:-i. .lL~--r.~-------Rd _______________ ______ ______ _ 
~ C/tv, State, ZIP+ 4 . 

~~f.itr~®1(~~~~&~~~~~~~illlf@~JTu]ill 

D Yes 

I 
102595·99-M-1789 





r Ste. Genevieve County Soil & Water Conservation District 
'\:~~ 

conserving 
natural resources 

Ji1r 1111 r .fit r tire 

November 19, 2014 

Soil an<l W::iter Conservation Commissinn 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City MO 65102 

Soil and Water Conservation Commission, 

711 Point Basse Drive Ste. Genevieve, MO 63670 
Phone (573) 883-3566 Fax (855)830-7530 

Thi~ letter is in regards to Ste. Genevieve County cost share contracts SGE083-11-0004, 0005, 
and 0006 for Mr. Travis Barnes. On August 3, 2014 Area Resource Conservationist Steve 
Crisel and Leann Ca1ter, Soil Conservationist in Ste. Genevieve did a spot check on an EQIP 
grazing system that had been installed. Upon inspection the following issue was discovered 
and reported to the District. Numerous and serious gully erosion issues were documented in 
field 11 and no permanent grass was present on fields 11, 12 and 14 which were seeded with 
district cost share practice DSL-1 in 2010 and is currently under maintenance \-vi.th this program 
until 2015. 

A ce1tified letter was sent to Mr. Travis Barnes on September 10, 2014 and he was given an 
option of doing a current soil test and reseeding these areas to.be completed in the fall seeding 
dates or returning prorated funds of $1060.64. Mr. Barnes phoned our office on September 
23, 2014 and asked if he could do this seeding in the spring which he was told that it had to be 
done by October 15th to avoid a·maintenance violation, he also asked if there was cost share 

, ayailable which he was told no due to it being in the maintenance period. Mr. Barnes is under 
·-: -"maintenance with his EQIP conti·act and NRCS is requesting a refund from him on the practice 

completed from his grazing system contract also. 

With no response from Mr. Barnes a second certified letter was sent requesting prorated cost 
share funds in the amount of $io60.64 to be returned to the SWCP. No response has been 
received from the landowner. 

The Ste. Genevieve County SWCD is requesting assistance from the Commission to recover the 
~~t~h~re ftmd.s from Mr. Barnes. 

Thank you, 

Robert Eckenfels, Chairman 
Ste. Genevieve County SWCD 

tf;;.l. 

'i- Ste. Genevieve County Board l\llembers 

Robert Eckcnfcls- Chairman, Lynn i\1cssc1·-Vicc Chai1·11ian, iVIarcclla Hotop-Trcasurc, 

Kate K1·a111111c1·-Sccrcta1·y, Belly Vogt-Mcmhcr 

,.\11 Equal Opportunity Provider & Employer 



- -- - - --------------- --------- ---



Ste. Genevieve County Soil & \!\Tater Conservation District 

conserving 
natural resources 

Jin· o I! r _(1! ! !1 ;·,: 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

October 15, 2014 

Travis Barnes 
1736 Three Rivers Rd. 
Farmington MO 63640 

Dear Mr. Barnes, 

711 Point Basse Drive S1·e. Cencvien:\ MO 63670 

Phone (573) 883-:~566 Fax (855)B:W-7::3:30 

The Ste. Genevieve County Soil and Water Conservation District Board of Supervisors 
met on October 7, 2014 and reviewed the maintenance violation on your Permanent 
Vegetative Cover Establishment that you received state cost-share assistance 
(SGE083-11-0004, 0005 and 0006). Since the maintenance violation has not been 
corrected by the deadline date of seeding of October 15th which was stated in the letter 
you received dated September 10, 2014 which also required a current soil test to meet the 
required NRCS standards and specifications, the soil district is requesting repayment of 
the prorated amount of $1060.64. Payment should be made to the State of Missouri, 
Depmtment of Natural Resources Soil & Water Program (MO DNR SWCP). You may 
send the check to this office or dfrectly to the state office. Please send to the attention of 
Soil & Water Conservation Program. 

·Within thilty days (30) of receipt of this letter you may request the State Soil & Water 
Commission to review the demand for repayment. This request must be made in 
writing and sent to the Department of Natural Resources Soil & Water Commission, P.O. 
Box 176, Jefferson City, MO. 65102. If the commission determines that no violation has 
occurred or that extenuating circumstance justifies your position, the demand for 
repayment sha11 be withdrawn and you will be notified. If the Commission determines 
the violation did occur, they wi11 notify you by certified mail asking for repayment. 

Sincerely, 

Robert Eckenfels 
Ste. Genevieve SWCD Chairman 

cc: Soil and Water Commission 

J{ohc1·1 Jo:cke11fds · Ch:ii1·!1::111. l.~.:t111 :\·h:ssl'l' ·- Vit:l'. <."hairrn:llL :\lan:t:lla I lolop-Trea.~111-e, 



---------- ----- -



Ui~rz:t· ? · 11 FH'S SH &5?55 § t ES #69 
SAINTE GENEVIEVE PO 

SAINTE GENEVIEVE. Missouri 
536709998 

2842230263 -0098 
011512014 <573>883-3250 02:04 :57 PM 

&ffl±± 99.s., .f!*1 
Sales Rece ipt 

r-oduct Sa 1 e Uni t 
ascription Qty Price 

ARMINGTON MO 53640-7180 Zone-1 
irst-Class Mai I Letter 
J.40 02. 
~xpected Del Ivery: Thu 10116/14 
~et urn Rep t (Green Carel) 
Ill Certified 
JSPS Certified Mail H: 
70111570000288050694 

[ssue· Pos1age : 

na I : 

ltd by : 
lSh 
1ange Due : 

I For t1-acking or inquiries go 10 
>PS .com or call 1-800-222-1811. 

Final 
Price 

$0. <19 

$2.70 
$3.30 

======== 
$6 . 49 

$6 .49 

$10. 00 
·$3. 51 

·1Jer st amps at usps . com/shop or ca 11 
·800-Stamp2'1 . Go to usps.coril/cl icknshtp 
1 print shipping labels with postage . For 
:her information call 1·800-ASK-USPS. 
· ~xx**X~Xx~x~xw~XX~XXXX~*~**~XXXXXXX*** 

' KXxx~xxxx*xx~XKXxxXxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 

rt your ma i 1 when and where you want it 
th a secure Post Office Box . Sign up for 
box onl tne at usps.com/poboxes. 
XXXXXKt~~~XXXX*X~xx*~*~*********Xxxxxx 

xxaxxxxXX~XXXAK~X(X~X~XXXX*X*X*xxxxxx~ 

I IH: 1000203652176 
erk: 04 

Al I sales final on stamps and postage 
Refunds for guaranteed services oril y 

Thank you for your business 

HELP US SERVE YOU BETTER 

TELL US ABOUT YOUR RECENT 
POSTAL EXPERIENCE 

Go to: 
ht!ps://postalexperience.ccm/Pos 

scan this code with your mobile device. 

YOUR OPINION COUNTS 

Cus toni.:w CuDv 

.:r 
er 
_JJ 

D 

LJ1 
D 
cO 
co 

nJ 
Cl 
0 
Cl 

0 
r
lf) 

Poslago 

CorUnod Foo 

Roturn nocolpt Foo 
(Endorsomonl Roqulrod) 

Aostrlctod Dollvory Foo 
(Endoroomonl Roqulrod} 

$ 
04 

Ponlm1u)< 
Horo 

10/15/20H 
Total Poetooo & Fooo $ 

r1 ·~~~~~,--~~~~-:--~~~~~--i 
r1 . ont o 

8 sirij,)[~\pi:Jfr-~~~:,·:~·~~~¥i,: ?. .......... ,; ·:· ···•••"'' ···; ·~· ............ .. . 
r- or PO Box No. I :.> l"' H'<? e '"- 1 '1 < (' ~ !'::.~~.! .......... .. .. · ······-·· -·· ···-·· -·· ·····-···-· ····- ··· ·-· · 

a Complete Items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
Item 4 If Restricted Delivery Is desired. 

Ill Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. 

r.1 Attach this card to the bacl< of the maifpiece, 
or on the front ff space permits. 

1. Article Addrossed to: 

gC\ .. "V)f.S 

T\01"'ee. 'R,~eV':s. 
(vlO 

~10 

.... ;. 

D Expross Mall · 

3. ·Service Type 

0 Certified Mall 
D Registered 

D Insured Mail 

[!'.]. Relurn Receipt for Merchandise 

D C.O.D. 

ti . Restricted Dollvory? (Extra Fee) D Yes 

2. Article Number 

(Transfer from service fabeQ 
7011 1570 0002 8805 0694 

PS Form 381 I, February 2004 Domestic Return Receipt 102595·02·M· 1540 





. ·. . . . . .· ~ \ 
•· .::·.;: 

Ste. Genevieve Soil and Water Conservation District 
711 Pointe Basse Dr. Ste. Genevieve MO 636 70-Phone (573) 883-3566 Fax (855) 830-7530 

September 10, 2014 

Travis Barnes 
1736 Three Rivers Rd 
Farmington, MO 63640 

Dear Mr. Barnes: 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has provided notice to the Ste. Genevieve SWCD that your 
EQIP grazing system is out of compliance due to active erosion and lack of vegetation on your farm: 2949 tract: 
6004. 

A random spot check of your EQIP grazing system was conducted on 8/13/14 by Steve Grisel, Area Resource 
Conservationist, and Leann Carter, Soil Conservationist, and the following issue was discovered and requires 
your immediate attention. Numerous and serious gully erosion issues were documented in field 11 and no 
permanent grass was present on the farm. Fields 11, 12 and 14 were seeded with District cost share practice 
DSL-1 in 2010 and is currently under maintenance with this program until 2015. The cost share payment you 
received covered the cost of seeding these fields to permanent vegetation, orchard grass and red clover, as well 
as fertilizer and lime applications according to the soil test recommendations. 

The following options are available to you at this time. You can either pay back the pro-rated amount of cost 
share received on the remaining year of maintenance for this practice $1060.64 or you can reseed the contracted 
acres according to NRCS standards and specs. If you chose to reseed the acres, an updated seeding sheet will 
need to be developed therefore requiring an updated soil test for these acres. Please note that a prepared seed 
bed is required prior to establishment. All gullies will have to be smoothed and graded in order to plant the fields. 
The acceptable seeding dates for this fall are September 1-0ctober 15th and if you chose to reseed you will be 
required to meet these planting dates for this calendar year. As with all District cost share, you will be required to 
submit documentation in the form of receipts, seed tags and date planting was completed. A site visit will be 
conducted to ensure the gullies have been addressed. 

A map is attached that shows the acres and field numbers that were seeded to the DSL-1 practice. Please review 
the enclosures and contact the office within 10 days of receipt of this letter. Once you've made a decision on how 
you'd like to proceed we will prepare the necessary documents. 

If you have any questions regarding the matter, please call the SWCD office at 573-883-3566, ext. 3. 

Sincerely, 

~,_.,_j- ~~'.L 
Robert Eckenfels 
Board Chairman 

Ste. Genevieve County Board Mernbers 

Robert Eckerrfels -Chaim1an 

iv\arcella l-l otop-Treasurer 

E\etl:y \/c)gt Mcrnbcr 

--------------

Lynn Messer-Vice Cl1<1i1 rnc:in 

1<..:1te l<arnmler-Secretti ry 



----------------- -------



~CS"'!S!! I~ 

SAINTE GENEVIEVE PO 
SAINTE GENEVIEVE, Missouri 

636709998 
2842230263 -0098 

09/10/2014 <573)883-3250 12:20:11 PM 

Product 
Description 

s~ies R:Ceipt 
Sale Unit 
Oty Price 

FARMINGTON MO 63640-7180 Zone-1 
First-Class Mal 1 Letter 
0.60 02. 

Expected Delivery: Thu 09/11/14 
Return Rcpt <Green Card> 
@W. C1;1rtified 
USPS Certified Mail U: 
70111570000288051219 

Issue Postage: 

Total: 

Paid by: 
Cash 

(jJ(j) For' tr'acking or· inquiries go to 
USPS.com or cal I 1-800-222-1811. 

Final 
Price 

tn 

$0.49 

$2.70 
$3.30 

======== 
$6.49 

$6.119 

$6.49 

Order stamps at usps.com/shop or call 
1-800-Stamp24 . Go to usps.com/cl icknship 
to print shipping labels with postage. For 
other information call.J.-800-ASK-USPS. 
XWX**x~xx~**Xk***X*********XXX*X****X*** 
X***~XX**~*****~********XX*****~*X***K** 
Get your' mai 1 when and where you 1~ant ft 
with a secure Post Office Box. Sign up for 
a box on I i ne at Lisps . com/poboxes. 
Kx*x*~KXXX*X*X*X***XX*****X*X****X**X*X* 
*~*~***x~iXX*X*XW*******X******~*~****** 

Bi I IU: 1000203628440 
Clerk: 03 

Al I sales final on stamps and postage 
RefLmds for guaranteed services only 

Thank you for yoLH' business 

--------- ----- -- -- - -- -- -------------

Q) ai 

~ ' 
o . Q) 

~ ~ ·a. 
~-0 IE :;; '@ 
o IE ID o E (.) ·- £ >. Q) 
0 :ii. 0 £ 
Cl) "O c ......, . 

<c.!!l~~o~ 
cii'.':-lll -UE 
"OQ)i:iQ)lll~ 
c: .2: "O .c .0 Q) 
roa>ro-GJo 
C\JO"OE£ro 
-"O@~of;} .,-- Q) ....... . 

U>oGJ""~:t:: 
E:SElij t: 
GJgirouo,g 
.t: c: Q) (I) 

.'!!a: 5 ~ 1:C Q) 
Q) :t: 0 ~ ...... .c 
ii"<t >-iii -5-;; 
EE1:-£iroo 

8,gi;t ~~ 0 
1:1 El . l"I 

er 
rl 
f1J 
rl 

lrJ 
D 
co 
co Pootooa $ 

f1J Gortirlod Fern 
D 
D no1urn RocolpC Foo 
D (Endo1oomon1 Aoqulrod) 

CJ 
flos1rlc100 Dollvory Foo 

I'-
(Enr!ocsomonl f!oqulrocl) 

lrJ 
Tola! Poslogo & Fouo $ rl 

·· ~ 

:i 

~ 
,:, 
~ 

D ~ 
~ 

er 
Ql' r-1 
~ ru 

i r-1 

lI1 

~ D ., cO 
.~ 

cO Qi 
Cl 
"O ru Q) 

CJ 0 0. 
~ D 

D 
a; 
0 a: Q) 

a: 
-<i CJ E r- fil lI1 

r-1 a: 
0 

r-::i 
"'j-
~ '-CS 

r-1 'fil 
r-1 E 

0 
D 0 

Cl ~ 
~ 

r-

~ 
~ C> • '> 

~ ... 
J\ r.Y. 
v 
<;: <\J r <,.. ~ B ~ .B u ca F 0 ., 

~ s: 
. 'j 

. , 
u 

~ ~ Ji > \\l ,., 
Q) .::; 

L1 0 

~ 
\ 

~ 
,..: 

"<t 
0 
0 

~ N 

" ~ ~ 

·~ 
2 
.a 
Q) 

Q) ll.. 

.... " 1l E ..-..-
!H 00 
z '- C') 

.!'! 
E .9l"' 0 c: 

~· ~ O · 
ll..·. 

c-i 
CJ) 
a.. ( 

-··-~ 

03 

n.?o f>QslmHrk 
Horo 

$0.00 

$6.~9 09/1012014 



- -- ----- - - - ---- ----------------


